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Notice is hereby given that the 55th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Assam Gas Company Limited will be held at its Coordination Office at “Adams Plaza”, 1st Floor, Christian Basti, G. S. Road, Guwahati-781005 on Tuesday, the 26th September, 2017 at 4.30 P.M. to transact the following Ordinary and Special Businesses:
Ordinary BusinessA. To receive, consider and adopt the Directors’ Report and the Report on Corporate Governance, 1. Secretarial Audit Report, along with the addendum thereto, if any, extract of Annual Return, the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017 and Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017 along with the Report of the Statutory Auditors and the Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon. To declare Dividend.2. 3. To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following as a Special Resolution:-“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors for the year 2017-2018 appointed  by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) under Section 139(5) Of the said Act, be and is hereby fixed at `1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) plus actual reasonable travelling and out of pocket expenses and taxes as applicable and for subsequent years, the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to fix the remuneration payable to Statutory Auditors.” B. Special Business1.  Remuneration of Cost Auditor:To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution with or without modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:-“ RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013 read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, appointment of M/s. Subhadra Dutta & Associates, Cost Accountants, Guwahati as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2017-18 by the Board of Directors of the Company  to conduct the audit of cost records maintained by the Company under Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 at a remuneration of `50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand) only  plus out of pocket expenses, reimbursement of travel and boarding expenses and payment of service tax at applicable rates etc., be and is hereby ratified and approved.” By Order of the Board of Directors Place: Guwahati Date: 15/09/2017       (D. Dev Gupta)                                                                                                                                                                                           Company Secretary

Notice to the Shareholders
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Explanatory statements under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the a. business under Item 4 as set out above are annexed hereto.A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or b. proxies, in the alternative, to attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member. Proxies, in order to be eff ective, should be duly completed & affixed with the revenue stamp and be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty eight hours before commencement of the Meeting.
        By Order of the Board of Directors                                                                                                                                        Place: Guwahati                                                                                      (D. Dev Gupta)Dist:    Kamrup                                                                                               Company SecretaryDate:   15/09/2017      
Explanatory   Statements   for   the   Special   Business   pursuant   to   Section 102   of   the 
Companies Act, 2013:The following are the Explanatory Statements in respect of item No. B of the Special Businesses indicated in the Notice dated 15/09/2017
Item No. B.4. Remuneration of Cost AuditorM/s Subhadra Dutta & Associates was appointed by the Board as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2017-2018 in terms of section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 at a remuneration of ` 50,000/- plus out of pocket expenses, reimbursement of travel and boarding expenses and payment of service tax at applicable rates.Pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit &Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration of Cost Auditor approved by the Board under section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is required to be ratified by the shareholders.Accordingly, approval is sought from the shareholders for ratification of remuneration payable to M/s Subhadra Dutta & Associates, Cost Auditor of the Company for the year 2017-2018.

By Order of the Board of Directors
(D. Dev Gupta)                                                                                                                                  Company SecretaryDate: 15/09/2017
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 55th Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2017. 
Financial ResultsThe Company's financial performance, for the year ended March 31st 2017 as compared to that of the previous year is summarised below:-                                                                                                                   (`in lakhs)

Particulars 2016-2017 2015-2016A. Revenue (a) From operations 22,141.41 27,957.09(b) Other Income 4,775.82 3,981.53                                      Total Revenue (A) 26,917.23 31,938.62B.  Expenses(a) Depreciation and amortization expenses 610.55 580.04(b) Other Expenses 15,740.29 21,115.24                                      Total Expenditure (B) 16,350.84 21,695.28C. Profit/Loss before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax:                (A-B) = C 10,566.39 10,243.34D. Prior period & Extraordinary items  (9.80) 1.45E. Profit before tax             (C-D) = E 10,556.59 10,244.79F. Tax Expenses       3,681.77 3,511.17G. Profit  for the period after Tax  (E-F)=G 6,874.82 6,733.62H. Balance of Profit transferred to Reserve & Surplus A/c 6,874.82 6733.62Earnings per equity share (in I. `) Basic & Diluted 406 398
Directors propose to appropriate this amount as 
under:

2016-2017 2015-2016Accumulated Profit & Loss Reserve 66203.06 59,520.27Adjustments for expenses, taxes and ReservesDividend : 211.43 169.14Dividend Tax 13.52 22.90Balance in Profit & Loss Reserve 65,978.11 59,328.23
Summarized Cash Flow Statement:Inflow / (outflow) from operations 4,439.29 1712.17Inflow/ (Outflow) from investing activities (7,880.07)   893.86Inflow/ (Outflow) from financing activities 3,335.72 (2858.40)Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (105.06) (252.37)

Directors’ Report
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

(a) Physical PerformanceThe transportation of gas to bulk consumers reduced by 9.08% from 1369.19 MMSCM to 1244.88 MMSCM due to lower availability of saleable gas from the producers and below average drawal by the bulk consumers, namely BVFCL and NTPS. NTPS has not operated their new plant as their gas supplier is unable to assure steady supply. Gas distribution to the CGD sector comprising of domestic, commercial and industrial (tea) consumers reduced by 1.65% from 191.89 MMSCM to 188.72 MMSCM. Consumption of gas by the domestic and commercial sub segments were more or less same. Gas drawal by the industrial segment consisting of mainly tea factories is weather dependent and beyond the control of the company. Additionally, due to reduced availability of gas, the drawal by consumers were also lower.  Overall utilisation of the gas transportation and distribution infrastructure was lower by 8.17% during 2016-17 as compared to the 2015-16. The value of fixed assets as on 31st March, 2017 stood at `122.82 Crores.Your company continued its focused attention towards various control measures as well as optimum utilization of available resources to ensure reasonable level of operating surplus. 
(b) Financial Performance

      During the year, the Company recorded a turnover of ` 301.81 Crores (comprising of income from Operations and Other Income) as against   ` 359.30 Crores during the previous year. The profit before tax for the year was `105.57 Crores, which is 3.05% higher compared to `102.45 Crores in 2015-16. The profit after tax for the year stood at ` 68.75 Crores as against `      67.34 Crores recorded in 2015-16. The earnings per share in 2016-17 was `406 compared to `     398 in the previous year. The internal generation of cash during the year stood at `    1.05 Crores (outflows) as against
` 2.52 Crores (outflow) in the previous year. Your Company through eff ective utilization of available surplus funds, was able to earn an interest income of ` 29.82 Crores during the year. During the year the Company acquired various fixed Assets of ` 6.49 Crores (at cost) as against `12.04 Crores (at cost) during the previous year.

OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRSThe Company continues to endeavour to transport the required quantity of gas at the agreed pressure and to meet the rising consumers’ expectations. Gas is being transported to the following consumers:Bulk consumers such as NTPS & LTPS of APGCL; AGBPP of NEEPCO; BVFCL and APL. • Over 404 Industrial and Tea consumers spread across the six districts of upper Assam • (Tinsukia, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Jorhat and Golaghat) and Charaideo district as of 31st August, 2017.Over 30023 domestic and nearly 1029 commercial consumers spread over 12 towns in • upper Assam as of 31st August, 2017.
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Domestic and commercial consumers are being constantly added to the various town gas grids. Some areas beyond town limits are also being brought under the piped gas network. After successfully completing the piped natural gas network in ONGCL’s Cinnemara residential colony at Jorhat and in Dibrugarh University a gas pipeline network is being developed in Titabar town near Jorhat. The company is now eyeing smaller urban agglomerations where natural gas sources are available nearby.
SHARE CAPITALDuring the year, your Company's paid up share capital stood at ` 16.91 Crores. 
DIVIDENDYour Directors, after taking into consideration the financial results of the Company during the year, are pleased to recommend for your approval 2.5 % increase in the rate of dividend compared to that of the previous year 2015-2016, (that is, 12.5%) per equity share of  ` 100.00 each on the paid-up Share Capital of  ` 16.91 Crores for the year   2016-2017 amounting to ` 2.11 Crores, exclusive of Corporate Dividend Tax. The dividend payout is subject to approval of members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
TREASURY OPERATIONSAs a part of better treasury management, your company had extended a loan of ` 66.80 Crores to its subsidiary company DNP Ltd during the previous year at an interest rate of 10 % which was higher than what the company was receiving by way of fixed deposits in scheduled banks. Till 31st August, 2017, DNPL has repaid an amount of ` 40.25 Crores to your company.  
CONTRIBUTION TO EXCHEQUERYour Company has contributed a total of ` 55.18 Crores to the Central Exchequer and
` 17.54 Crores to the State Exchequers in the form of taxes, duties and dividends compared to
` 52.24 Crores and ` 24.51 Crores respectively in the previous year.
GOVT. AUDIT REVIEWComments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) under section 143 (6)(b) of the Companies Act 2013 on Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017 together with managements reply as an addendum thereto are placed before the shareholders for consideration.
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIESDuring the year, the company did not enter into any related party transaction with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential conflict with interest of the company.All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis and are intended to further the Company’s interests. Relevant information in Form AOC 2 has been provided as Annexure C to Directors’ Report. During the year, the Company has not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which were in conflict with the Company’s interest.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIESInformation relating to Associate and Joint Venture companies duly certified by the management pursuant to section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been provided in Annexure- D to the Directors’ Report as per prescribed form AOC-1(Part-B).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTSNo material changes and commitments aff ecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this report.
BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENTAlthough the company does not have any specific risk management policy as on date, the Board of Directors of the company deliberates on threats, risks and concerns which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the continuation of its business or pose a threat to its existence. The Board reviews the means adopted by the company to mitigate the risk from time to time. The details of risk and concerns of the company are discussed in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this Report. 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLSThe Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed.
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186During the previous year, your company had extended a loan of ` 66.80 Crores to its subsidiary company DNP Ltd at an interest rate of 10 %, out of which till August, 2017,  ` 40.25 Crores has already been repaid by DNPL.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONThe Company is taking eff ective steps at every level of its activities for conservation of Energy.The Company is also pursuing options of setting up solar power projects for captive use. To reduce the consumption of power, the company has installed LED lighting in the Compressor Station.As part of technology absorption, the company is implementing a Geographical Information System for its wide network of steel and PE pipelines under which all pipeline assets will be mapped and digitized records of the assets, RoU / RoW will be available at the tap of a key.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGOThere were no direct foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year 2016-17. 
MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANYThere are no material changes in the relevant financial year 2016-2017 aff ecting the financial position of the company.
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DEPOSITS FROM PUBLICThe Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELSince Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable for Government Companies, no director shall retire by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting where appointment of such director is done by the Central Government or State Government as the case may be vide MCA Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015.
DirectorsSince the date of last Annual General Meeting held on 28.09.2016, following changes have been made:  

Sl. 
No.

Name of the 
Directors

Government 
Notification No.

Date of 
Appointment

Date of 
cessation

Designation

1. Shri Ravi Capoor, IAS MI.214/2002/Pt/57-A dated 7th September,2016 7th September, 2016 and 27th September, 2016 - Dy. Chairman andChairman2. Shri V. B. Pyarelal, IAS MI.214/2002/143-A dated 7th April, 2016 7th April,2016 23rd May, 2017 Director
3. Shri Sanat Kumar Kalita, ACS MI.214/2002/163-A dated 3rd May, 2017 23rd May, 2017 - Director
4. Ms. Shehla Rahman, ACS MI.214/2002/137 dated 27th January, 2016 27th January, 2016 - Director
5. Ms.Mayuri Chetia, ACS MI.214/2002/Pt./ 80-B dated 23rd May, 2017 23rd May, 2017 - Director
6. Shri P. K. Das MI.214/2002/Pt./24-A dated 26th February, 2014 26th February, 2014 30th November, 2016 Director
7. Shri A. K. Sharma MI.42/2015/34 dated 28th August, 2015 10th September, 2015 - Managing Director8. Shri A. K. Nath MI.214/2002/124 dated 24th August, 2015 24th September,2016 23rd May, 2017 Director9. Shri Siddartha Bordoloi MI.214/2002/163-C dated 23rd May, 2017 23rd May, 2017 - Director
10. Shri Anuj Kumar Borkotoky MI.214/2002/132-A dated 10th December, 2015 10th December, 2015 - Director
11. Mr. Helal Ahmed Khan MI.214/2002/132 dated 10th December, 2015 29th January,2016 - Director
12. Shri Rajib Hazarika MI.214/2002/132-B dated 10th December, 2015 29th January, 2016 - Director
13. Smt. Kalyani Baruah MI.214/2002/Pt/167-A 16th August,2017 - Director
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The Directors have placed on record their appreciation of the valuable contribution made and guidance given by Shri V. B. Pyarelal, Shri P. K. Das and Shri A. K. Nath for the development and progress of AGCL’s business during their tenure as Directors of the Company.
Key Managerial PersonnelThe following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the company:Shri Aditya Kumar Sharma, : Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer(a) Shri Vijay Kumar L, : Sr Manager (F&A) & Chief Financial Officer(b) CS Dolonchapa Dev Gupta, : Company Secretary(c) 
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:As there are no Independent Directors on the Board of the Company, the declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.
COMPANY'S  POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF 
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIESDisclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not required to be given in the case of Government Company vide Ministry of Corporate Aff airs Notification dated 05.06.2015.Having regard to the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during working hours and any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary and the same will be furnished on request.
BOARD EVALUATIONAs per MCA Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015, provisions of section 134(3)(p) shall not apply, in case the Directors are evaluated by the Ministry, which is administratively in charge of the Company as per its own evaluation methodology. As AGCL is a Government Company, disclosure requirement in respect of Board evaluation process is not applicable to the Company.
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTPursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:(a)  In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017, the applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; (b) The Directors have considered such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the Company as at March 31, 2017 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that  date; 
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(c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; (d)  The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;(e)  The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial controls are adequate and operating eff ectively;(f)  The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating eff ectively.Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants; and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and eff ective during the financial year 2016-17.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURESAs there is no employee drawing the specified remuneration, particulars of employees under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31st March, 2017 are not furnished. 
REMUNERATIONAs per MCA Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015, Section 197 does not apply to a Government company. Therefore, the requirement of disclosure to be made in the Directors’ Report in terms of Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.
STATUTORY AUDITORS AGCL being a Government Company, the Statutory Auditor is appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) as per Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. M/S S.K. Mallick & Co., (CA1807) Chartered Accountants, Post Moran Hat, Dibrugarh -785670 were appointed as Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2016-17 by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) under the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. They will hold office till the ensuing Annual General Meeting. They have confirmed their eligibility to the eff ect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified for re-appointment. 
Auditors ReportThe explanation or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the auditor in his report are enclosed as an addendum thereto is placed before the shareholders for consideration.
SECRETARIAL AUDITORSIn accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,     M/s Biman Debnath & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Guwahati were appointed by the Board as Secretarial 
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Auditors for conducting the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2016-17.The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2016-17 together with Managements’ reply on the comments of the Secretarial Auditors are attached as part of Annexure –B to this report. 
COST AUDITORSM/s. Subhadra Dutta   & Associates, Cost Accountant, Guwahati were appointed as Cost Auditors of the Company for the year 2016-2017 in accordance with the provision of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The due date for filing of cost audit report for the year 2016-2017 is 30.09.2017 for which necessary action is being taken.
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(a) DNP LimitedDNP Limited (a subsidiary of your Company and in joint venture with NRL and OIL) during the sixth full year of its operation transported approximately 229.12 MMSCM (Million Standard Cubic Metres) of natural gas to NRL as against the annual contracted quantity of 300 MMSCM. The financial statements of DNP Ltd had been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards.During the year 2016-2017, DNP Ltd. registered a profit of ` 49.85 Crores before interest, depreciation and taxes against a turnover of   ̀  66.51 Crores and a profit after tax of ̀  13.49 Crores as against profit after tax of ` 9.62 Crores in the previous year.As on 31st March, 2017 and your company’s investment in DNP Limited stands at ` 85.30 crores. DNP Ltd has recommended a dividend of 2.50% (excluding corporate dividend tax) of the paid-up share capital of  ` 167.25 Crores (i.e. ` 0.25 per fully paid equity shares of ` 10/- each) to its shareholders which would absorb a sum of ` 5.03 crores out of the Company’s PAT inclusive of Corporate Dividend Tax.
(b) Tripura Natural Gas Company Ltd (TNGCL)Your company was a founder promoter of TNGCL and at present holds a stake of 25.51% of paid up equity in TNGCL with an investment of ̀  1.00 Crores. The other partners are Tripura Industrial Development Corporation (TIDC) – 25.51% and GAIL (India) Ltd – 48.98%. The company has developed a business plan whereby the company will be making capital investments of  ` 75.00 Crores of which the promoters shall invest ` 24.00 Crores.Your company, at the request of TNGCL is taking necessary actions to increase their investment by `6.00 Crores, and which is subject to the approval of the Public Investment Board (PIB), Government of Assam.  
(c) Assam Petrochemicals LtdAssam Petro-Chemicals Ltd., Namrup had invited your company along with Government of Assam and Oil India Ltd. to participate in equity in their ambitious expansion project with an estimated project cost of ̀  1337.00 Crores. The 500 tpd (tons per day) methanol project is being implemented in the adjacent site of the present plant in Namrup and the proposed 200 tpd  formalin plant will be set up in western Assam. The expansion project is expected to be commissioned in 36 months time from the zero date fixed by that company. The Government of Assam has already approved the 
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investment proposal of your company in tune of   ` 28.00 Crore in equity. The Government of Assam alongwith AIDC, AGCL will hold 51% and Oil India Ltd. will be holding 49% stake in APL. Your company is the transporter of natural gas for APL and as such, the enhanced requirement of natural gas (up from 0.15 MMSCMD to 0.50 MMSCMD) will also be taken up by AGCL.
AUDIT COMMITTEEThe details of the composition of the Audit Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report.  The Committee comprises of Shri Sanat Kumar Kalita as Chairman of the Committee, Shri Siddhartha Bordoloi as member and Shri Rajib Hazarika as member.
CSR COMMITTEEThe Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of Shri Sanat Kumar Kalita as Chairman of the Committee, Shri Siddhartha Bordoloi as member and Shri A.K.Sharma as member.
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE POLICYIn absence of Independent Directors, no such Committee has been formed.
DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISMThe Company has a Vigilance Department and the vigil mechanism is supplemented by various other committees such as the Production Committee, etc. During the year, the company implemented a formal Vigil Mechanism along with a Whistle Blower Policy.
DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013There were no cases filed for Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace during the Financial Year 2016-17.In the previous year, the company implemented a formal Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace under the (Prevention, prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace) Act, 2013.
Indian Accounting Standards The Ministry of Corporate Aff airs (MCA), vide its notification in the Official Gazette dated February 16, 2015, notified the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain classes of companies. Ind AS has replaced the existing Indian GAAP prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
Changes in Accounting Policies:In preparation of the accounts and the Financial statements of the company, some changes in the Accounting Policies of the Company have been adopted which are as follows:The method of keeping the accumulated surplus under the “Profit & Loss Account” under 1. “Other Equity (Liabilities) in the Balance Sheet has been changed to the following method with eff ect from the year 2016-17.
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Opening of a separate account for “General Reserves” under “Other Equity (Liabilities) in a. the Balance Sheet for keeping the surplus of the accumulated funds.Keeping a maximum balance of b. `5 00 000.00 in the “Profit & Loss Account” under “Other Equity (Liabilities) in the Balance Sheet for every year.Transferring the surplus accumulated fund in the “Profit & Loss Account” to “General c. Reserve Account” both under “Other Equity (Liabilities) in the Balance Sheet.Impairment of Assets :2. Treatment of Additional Security Deposits from Domestic consumers : 3. 4. Capitalisation of spares:

LEGAL COMPLIANCESThe company has complied with the applicable statutory and legal compliances including Integrity Management Systems (IMS) for Natural Gas Pipelines and CGD networks under PNGRB Act, 2006 and Essential Services Maintenance Act in the financial year 2016-2017.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURNIn accordance with Section134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, the extract of the Annual Return as at 31st March, 2016 in the prescribed form MGT 9, forms part of this report and is placed at ‘Annexure - E’.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCECorporate Governance is about maintaining a trusted relationship with all stakeholders and is an integral part of our value creation in the Company. Your Company has been maintaining integrity, transparency and accountability in all its spheres of business.In accordance with the guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) in May 2013, a report on Corporate Governance together with a Certificate from a practicing Company Secretary on compliance of the guidelines on Corporate Governance is attached as a separate Annexure-A to the Directors’ Report. The forward looking statements made in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Directors do not guarantee that such expectations will eventually materialise.
GENERALYour Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 2. Issue of equity shares with diff erential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and except ESOS referred to in this Report. 4. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future. 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTYour Directors take this opportunity to place on record their deep gratitude for the employees’ continued display of their total commitment towards the objectives of the company and look forward to their services with zeal and dedication in the years ahead.Your Directors sincerely thank AGCL’s valued customers for their continued cooperation and confidence and look forward to the continuance of this mutually supportive relationship in future.The Directors sincerely acknowledge the assistance, guidance and support received from various Government Departments, particularly, from Industries and Commerce Deptt. Govt. of Assam, Public Enterprises Deptt., Govt of Assam, Offices of Commissioner of Income Tax, Commissioner of Central Excise & Service Tax, offices of Comptroller & Auditor General, Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board  as well as other Central and State Government agencies. The Directors of AGCL express their heartfelt gratitude to all the bankers, contractors and suppliers for their contribution to its success. 
Yours Directors express their sincere thanks to Oil India Limited and ONGC Ltd. and for their reposing confidence and continuing support to AGCL.

                                                                              For and on behalf of Board of                                                                                    ASSAM GAS COMPANY LIMITEDDate  :  12-09-2017                                                                                                    Place : Guwahati              (Ravi Capoor)Chairman
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Management's Discussion and Analysis Optimum utilization of gas transportation and distribution infrastructure plays an important role in the gas industry for efficient delivery of gas to end consumers.  Since natural gas is a product which cannot be stored, the transportation and distribution entity has to continuously play a balancing role between the producer and the consumer of gas. Any deviation or disruption from expected operating conditions such as lower availability of natural gas from producers or lower / higher drawal by consumers adversely aff ect the gas distribution network.To improve customer experiences, the company is implementing an enterprise wide SCADA system to ensure that the bulk and industrial consumers get their booked quantum of natural gas at the right pressure.
Directors perception of the future of the 
Company To grow, the company has to expand its operations. As per the Hydrocarbon Vision 2030 for North Eastern Region of the Govt of India, the company is positioned to be a key player in the development of the gas transportation and distribution architecture in the North East. It is poised to be part of a consortium engaged in the development of the gas trunk pipelines in the Brahmaputra and the Barak Valleys and to be connected to the National Gas Grid at Barauni in Bihar. The company is working closely with the Committee constituted by the Govt of India for implementation of the Hydrocarbon Vision 2030. The company has formally submitted an Expression of Interest to PNGRB to lay a 750 km of natural gas pipeline from Barauni in Bihar to Guwahati to bring in 15 MMSCMD of natural gas. Oil India Ltd. having its roots in Assam is likely to be a partner in the Rs 3500.00 Crores 

project expected to be hugely beneficial not only for the economic and industrial development of Assam but the entire North East.The Company had also bid for natural gas from isolated fields of ONGC Ltd in the Golaghat Khoraghat area and the capacity of gas evacuation pipeline from Urimaghat to Golaghat to connect with its Duliajan = Namrup – Lakwa – Golaghat line is expected to be completed during 2018-2019.
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and 
ThreatsThe strength of the company lies in the fact that it is one of the oldest dedicated gas transmission and distribution company in the country having a vast experience in both the natural gas transmission and the CGD (city gas distribution) business. While the experience in transmission and distribution gives the company its strength, the decades old legacy business systems and processes preceding fast paced business environment and digital age is a source of weakness. The company is in the process of appointing a management consultant for transforming it into a system driven modern business enterprise. With a fast rising demand for natural gas right across the world, there have been tremendous changes in the gas business including production, transportation, distribution, marketing, technology and utilization in its various forms. To keep pace with the rapidly evolving business environment brought about by newer regulations and guidelines requires urgent induction and absorption of technology in both the front end and backend aspects of the business.As on date, the company has been operating in a near monopolistic market for natural gas 
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in the North Eastern Region. It is a founder promoter in the two other gas entities operating in the region, namely, TNGCL and DNPL. With the Govt of India’s thrust in developing the gas infrastructure and increasing market penetration in the region, the company has the opportunity and potential to play a key role in developing the regional gas grid.
Risks & ConcernsRisks and associated concerns for 2017-18 mainly pertain to availability of natural gas from the suppliers, Oil India Ltd and ONGC Ltd. especially in view of the demand for gas by Brahmaputra Crackers & Polymers Ltd (BCPL) and overall shortfall of about 2.00 MMSCMD of gas without any major discoveries in the region.Gas drawal by the weather dependent tea manufacturing industry are beyond the control of the company and not wholly predictable. Revenue generations from these consumers are therefore difficult to predict. The gas drawal by NTPS has been much below their average drawal during the preceeding years mainly due to the fact that their ageing plant is not operating to capacity and the new plant is not being operated as their gas supplier is unable to assure steady supply. Moreover, a huge outstanding has developed with the consumer.
SafetyDuring the year 2016-2017, there was no loss time accident (LTA). To ascertain the integrity of the assets and to enhance the safety of operations, several initiatives were taken up by the company in line with PNGRB (Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board) Regulations. The company has also recruited a full time Safety Officer to guide the company is enhancing the safety aspects of its operations.During the year 2016-2017, fire and safety training, awareness programmes and onsite and off site emergency drills were organized 

during the year, some of which were in association with the Mutual Aid partners.
Human ResourceAs on 31st March, 2017, total employees strength was 411(including MD) of which 338 belonged to the staff  category and 73 to the executive cadre. They are supplemented by engagement of contractual personnel, muster roll workers and home guards.
Employee RelationsYour company has been able to maintain a cordial and harmonious relation with all its employees through mutual support and cooperation at all levels. The Board recognizes the contribution made by all employees of the company and wishes to record their appreciation for the dedication and hard work put in by them without any loss of mandays.
Corporate Social Responsibility & 
SustainabilityAGCL’s initiatives towards CSR and Sustainability were pursued with increased emphasis during 2016-17. The CSR Policy can be accessed in the Company's website atwww.assamgas.orgSome of the highlights of CSR and Sustainability activities undertaken by your Company during the year are:Health Care and Sanitationi. Environmental Sustainability and ii. Ecological Balance Employment enhancing vocational skills.iii. Integrated Village Development.iv. Based on the Company’s Financial Performance for the last three financial years, total amount proposed for CSR for the year 2016-2017 was 
` 197.00 Lakhs. However, after considering the unspent amount of `165.59 Lakhs earmarked for the year 2015-2016, total fund available for the year 2016-2017 was ` 406.05 Lakhs.
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As against above, total amount spent on CSR activities during the financial year 2016-2017 was `111.75 Lakhs and the balance committed and unspent amount of `107.00 Lakhs has been carried forward to the financial year i.e. 2017-2018.A detailed report on the company’s CSR and Sustainability activities is enclosed at
Annexure – F .Members of the CSR & Sustainability Committee confirmed that implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR Objectives and Policy of theCompany.
RegulationsAssam Gas Company Limited being a natural gas transportation and distribution entity has to operate as per the regulations notified 

under PNGRB Act, 2006 by the Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB) The entire city gas distribution (CGD) business of the company covering domestic, commercial and industrial (tea factories, small industrial units, etc) consumers in the five upper Assam districts of Tinsukia, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Jorhat and Golaghat has been authorized by PNGRB under the Upper Assam City Gas Distribution Network of AGCL (UACGDNA). PNGRB has also authorized the company under the Assam Natural Gas Pipeline Network (ANGPL) of AGCL to lay, build and operate natural gas pipelines in the same five districts of Assam.The company has taken up phase wise implementation of various requirements under the T4S regulations of PNGRB for CGD networks and NG pipelines and are in various stages of compliance.
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Company’s philosophy on Code of Corporate GovernanceCorporate Governance is a set of system and practices adopted by a Company to ensure that it is managed in a way that ensures accountability, transparency, fairness, disclosure and value creation in all its transactions and also meet the aspiration of the stake holders and expectation of the society. Corporate Governance is the crucial thread that carefully binds the various managerial functions by balancing the complex relationship between the management, Board of Directors, Audit Committee and various other subcommittees. In AGCL, thrust is to adopt best governance practices, which will ensure optimization of returns and satisfaction levels to all shareholders. The Company has been sharing relevant information with the various stakeholders from time to time through Annual Reports, web publication, etc. Being a non-listed entity it is not mandatory to disclose as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement & Companies Act. However, as good corporate governance practice and as per Guidelines on Corporate Governance for State Level Public Enterprises issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Govt of Assam in May, 2013, the Company has been complying with the stipulations contained therein to the extent applicable.  The report on Corporate Governance forms an integral part of the Directors report. The requisite certificate from the secretarial auditors of the company confirming compliance with the conditions of corporate governance is attached to the report on Corporate Governance at 
Annexure-A. (Contd.)Relevant information on areas covered under Corporate Governance disclosures during the financial year 2016-2017 are furnished below:-

Board of Directors1. AGCL is a Government Company under Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013, wholly owned by the Government of Assam. In terms of the Articles of Association of the company, the number of Directors shall not be less than two and not more than fifteen.As on 31st March, 2017, the Board of AGCL comprised of three Part time (Ex-Officio) Directors nominated by the Government of Assam represented by Industries and Commerce Department and Finance Department. Oil India Ltd. as the major supplier of gas is represented by a Nominee Director in the Board of the company. Managing Director is the only Whole Time Director on the Board of the Company. In addition there were three part time non-official Directors in the Board. The Government of Assam notifies all appointment of Directors of the Company. The Power and Public Enterprises Department, Government of Assam each nominates one of its representatives as one of the Director on the Board of the Company.Additional Chief Secretary, Mines & Minerals, Water Resources Department, etc, Government of Assam,  who was earlier Addl Chief Secretary, Industries & Commerce Department, was holding the position of Deputy Chairman of the Company, in terms of Article 93(b) of the Articles of Association of the company. He ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 31/08/2016 on attaining the age of superannuation.  Additional Chief Secretary, Industries & Commerce Department, Govt of Assam is presently holding the position of chairman of the Company. None of the Directors (ex Officio/ 

Report on Corporate Governance
Annexure - A
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part time) of AGCL had any pecuniary relationship / transaction with the company during the year.As per Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013, Director should not hold directorship in more than 20 Companies at the same time and directorship in Public Companies should not exceed 10 nos. During the year, there was no violation of Section 165 pertaining to number of directorships by any Director. The Board’s actions and decisions are aligned with the Company’s best interests. The Board has a laid down mechanism to facilitate Post Meeting follow ups, Review and Reporting process for the decision taken by the Board or Sub-Committee of the Board.The Board’s actions and decisions are aligned with the Company’s best interests. The Board critically evaluates the strategic direction of the Company, management policy, annual plan, budget, financial reports, etc.
Details regarding Board Meetings, Annual General meeting, Directors’ attendance thereat, 
Directorship held by the Directors are as under:-Six Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2016-2017, details of which are as follows:-

Sl. 
No.

Board Meetings Date Place1. 267th 7th April, 2016 Guwahati2. 268th 29th June, 2016 Guwahati3. 269th 19th September, 2016 Guwahati4. 270th 29th November, 2016 Guwahati5. 271st 23rd February,  2017 Guwahati6. 272nd 29th March,  2017 GuwahatiThe relevant details of the Directors of the company as on 31st March, 2017 are provided below:
Sl
No

Name of the 
Directors

Academic 
Qualifications

Date of 
joining as 

Director of 
the Company

No. of 
meeting 
attended

%

Attendance 
at the last 

Annual 
General 
Meeting

Details of 
Director-ships 
held in other 

companies

1. Shri Ram Tirath Jindal, IAS, (ceased 
w.e.f. 31/08/2016)

M.Sc (Chemistry) from Punjab Agriculture University 18/06/2012 2 100 -

Chairman1.DNPL2.ATPO3.GTACDy. Chairman1. AGCLManaging Director1.AHECLDirector1. NRL
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2. Shri Ravi Capoor, IAS B.Com , MBA 07/09/2016 4 100 -

Director:1.AIDCL2. NRL3. BCPLChairman1. AGCL2. ATCL3. ASIDCManaging Director1.AHECL
3.

Ms. Shehla Rahman, ACS, Secretary, Industries & Commerce Department, Government of Assam.
B.A(History) 27/01/2016 6 100 -

Managing       Director: ASIDCDirector:1.AHECL2.AMDCL3. APL4. AGCL

4. Shri V. B. Pyarelal, IAS (ceased w.e.f. 
23/05/2017)

Post Graduation in Economics from University of Kerala & M. Phil. degree in Social Sciences from Panjab University
07/04/2016 1 33 -

Director1. APL2.AHC&ECL3. NIPF& P4. AGCLMember 1. NLUJAA2. AERC3. GMDAPermanent InviteeNRL

5. Shri P. K. Das(ceased w.e.f. 
30.11.2016) M. Com 26/02/2014 4 100 -

Director1.AGCL2.AHSIDCL3.ASCL4.AMDCL5.AL&PCL6.ASF (F&D)CL7.APL8.AEDCL9.APTDCL10.AHECL11.APGCLShareholdingOne (1) No. of Equity share valued Rs.100/- in ATCL
6. Shri Aditya Kumar Sharma, 

B.Com (Hons.), ACMA, MBA(Finance) from IISWBM, Calcutta University
10/09/2015 6 100 Attended

Director:1.DNPL      2.TNGCL Managing Director1. AGCL
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7.  Shri A.K. Nath, GGM (GMS), OIL(ceased 
w.e.f. 28/06/2017)

Mechanical Engineer 24/09/2015 6 100 Attended Director:1.  DNPL2. AGCL8. Mr. Helal Ahmed Khan B.A 29/01/2016 3 50 - ProprietorM/s Rahi EnterpriseDirector1. AGCL9. Shri Rajib Hazarika MBA (Marketing & Personnel) from Pune University
29/01/2016 6 100 - Proprietor 1. Demow HP Gas ServicePartner1.East India Construction Director1. AGCL10. Shri Anuj Kumar Borkotoky H.S Pass 10/12/2015 2 33 - DirectorAR Medical Pvt. Ltd.PartnerN.R. MarketingGautam Tea Plantations Pvt. Ltd.Director1. AGCL

Percentage computed by considering the meetings attended with the total meetings held during his tenure.

AGCL: Assam Gas Company Limited, AHECL: Assam Hydrocarbon & Energy Company Limited, APL: Assam Petrochemicals Limited, ATPO: Assam Trade Promotion Organisation, AHSIDCL: Assam Hills Small Industries Development Corporation Ltd. ASCL:  Assam Seeds Corporation Ltd. AMDCL: Assam Mineral Development Corporation Ltd.ALPCL: Assam Livestock & Poultry Corporation Ltd. ASF(F&D)CL: Assam State Film (Finance & Development) Corporation Ltd. APTDCL: Assam Plain Tribes Development Corporation Ltd. DNPL: DNP Ltd. NRL: Numaligarh Refinery Limited, GTAC: Guwahati Tea Auction Centre, 
ASIDC: Assam Small Industries Development Corporation, TNGCL: Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited, 
APGCL: Assam Power Generation Corporation Limited, ASIDC: Assam Small Industries Development Corporation Limited, ATCL: Assam Tea Corporation Limited.AEDCL: Assam Electronics Development 
Corporation Ltd. NIPF&P: National Institute of Public Finance &Policy, BCPL: Brahmaputra Cracker and Polymer Limited,  NLUJAA: National Law University and Judicial Academy, Assam, AERC: Assam Electricity Regulatory Commission GMDA: Guwahati Metropolitan Development Authority.

Audit Committee2. AGCL introduced Corporate Governance in the organization during the year 2008 itself by constituting an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing and reporting practices, remuneration of Statutory Auditors, appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditors, performance of Internal Auditor and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements, etc.The revised role, powers and functions of the Audit Committee were specified and approved by the Board in its 251st Meeting. The quorum for the meetings of the Committee is two members or 1/3rd of the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher.
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Constitution of Audit Committee 2.1 In order to comply with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Chapter 12 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and in line with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for SLPEs issued by the Government of Assam on May, 2013, and also as a part of good Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors of the Company in its 266th meeting held on 8th February, 2016 approved the reconstitution of the Audit Committee with the following members:- 1. Shri Pradeep Kumar Das, as Chairman of Audit Committee2. Shri Achintya Kumar Nath, Member3. Shri Rajib Hazarika, Member The Audit Committee was further reconstituted by the Board  in its 273rd meeting held on 28/ 06/ 2017  due to the retirement of  Shri Pradeep Kumar Das  from his Government services on 30th November, 2016  on attaining the age of superannuation and withdrawal of nomination of Shri Achintya Kumar Nath  by Oil india Limited on 23/05/2017. The Audit Committee was reconstituted with the following members:-1. Shri Sanat Kumar Kalita, as Chairman of Audit Committee2. Shri Siddhartha Bordoloi, Member3. Shri Rajib Hazarika, MemberThe members posses the requisite knowledge of Finance and Accounts for eff ective functioning of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 
2.2.   Role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee:Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial  • information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.  Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditor, fixation of audit fee, and  • also approval for payment of any other services.Reviewing with management the quarterly/ half yearly /annual financial statements before  • submission to the Board, focusing primarily on :Reviewing any Related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material nature  • with promoters or the management, their subsidiaries, relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Reviewing with management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control  • systems and any significant findings and follow up thereon.Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management policies. •

2.3. Meeting of the Audit Committee:Three Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2016-2017, details of which are as follows:-
Sl. No. Audit Committee Meetings Date Place1. 6th 28th June, 2016 Guwahati2. 7th 19th September, 2016 Guwahati3. 8th 28th November, 2016 Guwahati
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2.4 Attendance of the Audit Committee meeting during the financial year 2016-17:

Name of the members
No. of meetings 

attended

%age thereof 
(out of 2 meetings 

held)

Attendance at the 
last Annual General 

Meeting 

Shri P. K. Das, Chairman (ceased to 
be a director w.e.f. 30/11/2016)

3 100 -
Shri A. K. Nath, Member (ceased to 
be a director w.e.f. 28/06/2017)

3 100 -
Shri Rajib Hazarika, Member(w.e.f. 29/01/2016)

2 67 -
Nomination and Remuneration Committee:3. In absence of Independent Directors, no such Committee has been formed.
Investors Grievance Committee4. :AGCL being a non-listed Company with only two shareholders, no such Committee has been formed.
Corporate Social Responsibilty (CSR) Committee:5. AGCL took the initiative to contribute towards society in a transparent, responsible, accountable and fair manner by constituting Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee under Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in line with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for SLPEs issued by the Government of Assam on May, 2013, and also as a part of good Corporate Governance. AGCL’s CSR policy was approved on 23/04/2015 and subsequently amended on 29/06/2016. Consequently, a CSR committee was formed on 29/06/2016 in partial modification of the resolution dated 09/10/2015 with the following members:Shri P.K. Das as Chairman of the CSR Committee, i. Shri A.K.Nath as Member and ii. Shri Aditya Kumar Sharma as Member. iii. The CSR Committee was further reconstituted by the Board  in its 273rd meeting held on  28/ 06/ 2017  due to the retirement of  Shri Pradeep Kumar Das  from Government services on 30th November, 2016  on attaining the age of superannuation and withdrawal of nomination of Shri Achintya Kumar Nath  by Oil india Limited on 23/05/2017. The CSR Committee was reconstituted with the following members:-1. Shri Sanat Kumar Kalita, as Chairman of Audit Committee2. Shri Siddhartha Bordoloi, Member3. Shri Aditya Kumar Sharma, Member

5.1 Meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:Two Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2016-2017, details of which are as follows:-
Sl. No. CSR Committee Meetings Date Place1. 5th 8th August, 2016 Guwahati2. 6th 28th November, 2016 Guwahati
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Attendance of the CSR Committee meeting during the financial year 2016-17:

Name of the members
No. of meetings 

attended
%age thereof (out of 

1 meeting held)

Attendance at the 
last Annual General 

Meeting held on Shri P.K. Das, Chairman of CSR Committee                          
(w.e.f. 29/03/2014)

2 100 -
Shri Aditya Kumar Sharma, Member ( w.e.f. 
10/09/2015)

2 100 Attended
Shri A. K. Nath, Member                        
( w.e.f. 24/09/2015)   

1 50 Attended
6.  Annual/Extra Ordinary General Meetings:

Details of location, time and date of last three AGMs/EGM are given below:a) 

Sl. No.
Date and Time of the 

Meetings
Venue52nd Annual General Meeting 29th September, 2014at 11.00 A.M Registered office of AGCL, Duliajan, Duliajan-78660252nd Adjourned Annual General Meeting 8th December, 2014at 11.00 A.M Registered office of AGCL, Duliajan, Duliajan-78660253rd Annual General Meeting 30th September, 2015at 11.00 A.M Registered office of AGCL, Duliajan, Duliajan-78660254th Annual Genaral Meeting 28th September, 2016at 11.00 A.M Registered office of AGCL, Duliajan, Duliajan-786602It is to be noted that no extra ordinary general meeting was held during the year.

Details of Special Resolution passed during the last three years:b) Special Business Type of Resolution Date of MeetingNil Nil                                                                                                                                                  Nil
Brief Resumes of Directors as on datec) In accordance with Article 92 of the Articles of Association of the Company, all the Directors are appointed by the Government of Assam.

(i) Shri Ravi Capoor, IASShri Ravi Capoor was appointed as Nominee Director as well as the Deputy Chairman of the Government of Assam under Section 161(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 94(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company and Government of Assam Notification No. MI.214/2002/Pt/57-A dated 7th September, 2016. Subsequently Shri Capoor was appointed as Chairman of the Company vide Govt of Assam Notification No. MI.214/2002/Pt./62-A dated 27th September, 2016.Ravi Capoor, is an Indian Administrative Service (IAS) officer of 1986 batch of Assam Meghalaya joint Cadre. He served as Director of Petroleum Conservation Research Association of Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, Government of India. He has been working in diff erent capacities in Government of Assam and Central Government for more than three decades.
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Ravi Capoor is presently serving as Additional Chief Secretary to the Govt. of Assam, Industries & Commerce, Public Enterprises Department and Mines & Minerals Department. He is a senior bureaucrat of the Government of Assam who brings to the Board his deep and wide experience in administration.
(ii) Shri Sanat Kumar Kalita, ACSShri Sanat Kr. Kalita was appointed as Nominee Director by the Government of Assam under Section 161 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Article 93(a) & 93(c) of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company vide Government of Assam notification No.MI 214/2002/163-B, dtd 23rd May, 2017.Shri Kalita belongs to the Assam Civil Service (ACS) of 1986 batch. He was earlier associated with the Company in 2012 when he was working in the Industries and Commerce Deptt., Government of Assam and attended AGM of the Company as Government representative. At present, Sri Kalita is serving as Commissioner & Secretary to the Govt. of Assam, Public Enterprises Department.
(iii)  Ms. Shehla Rahman, ACSMs. Shehla Rahman was appointed as Nominee Director of the Government of Assam under Section 161(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 93(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company and Government of Assam Notification No. MI. MI.214/2002/137 dated 27th January, 2016.Ms. Shehla Rahman, ACS did her graduation in History from Nehu University. She joined Assam Civil Service, and is having experiences of 32 years. She worked in diff erent capacities in various Departments of the Government of Assam as well as the Districts. Presently she is working as Secretary, Industries & Commerce Department to the Government of Assam.Ms. Shehla Rahman, apart from being Director of this Company, is also a Managing Director in ASIDC and is holding Directorship in three other State Level Public Enterprises of Assam.
(iv) Shri Aditya Kumar Sharma:Shri A. K. Sharma was appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f.  10th September, 2015 as per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 in pursuance of his appointment by Government of Assam Notification dated 28/08/2015 and thereafter in the 53rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30/9/2015.Shri A.K. Sharma is a Member of the Institute of Cost & Works Accountants of India and MBA (Finance) from Indian Institute of Social Welfare & Business Management (IISWBM), Calcutta University. Shri Sharma joined AGCL in the year 1988 as Accounts Officer. He has more than 29 years of rich and varied experience in Project Financing, Budgeting, Financial Management, etc. Prior to his appointment as Managing Director, he was holding the position of Deputy General Manager (F&A) in AGCL.
(v) Shri Siddhartha BordoloiShri Siddhartha Bordoloi, a  Mechanical Engineer and a certified Petroleum Manager, has wide experience in working in Hydrocarbon value chain. He served in Kirloskar Cummins, 
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IOCL(Bongaigoan Refinery) prior to joining Oil India Limited. Since joining Oil India Limited, he has been working in various capacities for more than three decades. Presently Shri Bordoloi is serving as General Manager- Gas Management Services in Oil India Limited and posted in Field Head Quarter Duliajan. A member of ASME and Institute of Engineers (India), Shri Bordoloi contributed to the engineer’s fraternity with published technical papers in National and International Conferences.
(vi)  Smt. Mayuri Chetia, ACS Smt. Mayuri Chetia was appointed as Nominee Director by the Government of Assam under Section161(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 93(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company and Government of Assam Notification No. MI.214/2002/Pt/80 dated 23rd May, 2017.Smt. Mayuri Chetia, is an Assam Civil Service (ACS) officer of 1992 batch. Starting her career in a remote Circle under Dibrugarh district she gathered vast experience serving in diff erent capacities in various districts of Assam as well as in the State Capital throughout her career spanning over more than twenty five years. She has had the experience of working in some very important Departments of the State Government such as Home, Political, and Revenue & Disaster Management. She is presently serving as Joint Secretary to the Govt. of Assam, Finance Department. Smt. Chetia is a senior bureaucrat of the Government of Assam whose wide experience in administration will benefit the Board.
(vii) Shri Anuj Kumar BorkotokyShri Anuj Kumar Borkotoky was appointed Nominee Director of the Government of Assam under Section 161(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 93(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company and Government of Assam Notification No. MI.214/2002/132 dated 10th December, 2015.
(viii) Mr. Helal Ahmed KhanMr. Hellal Ahmed Khan was appointed w.e.f. 29/01/2016 as Nominee Director of the Government of Assam under Section 161(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 93(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company and Government of Assam Notification No. MI.214/2002/132-A dated 10th December, 2015.Mr.  Helal Ahmed Khan is a graduate from Assam University, Silchar.
(ix) Shri Rajib HazarikaShri Rajib Hazarika was appointed w.e.f. 29th January, 2016 as Nominee Director of the Government of Assam under Section 161(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 93(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company and Government of Assam Notification No. MI.214/2002/132-B dated 10th December, 2015.Shri Rajib Hazarika is a social worker and a sports organizer and a graduate of Dibrugarh University who subsequently completed MBA from Institute of Management Education under Pune University. He is an entrepreneur businessman by profession.
(x) Smt. Kalyani BaruahSmt. Kalyani Baruah, Managing Director, Assam Power Generation Corp. Ltd., was appointed we.f. 16th August, 2017 as Nominee Director of the Government of Assam under Section 161(3) of the 
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Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 93(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company and Government of Assam Notification No. MI.214/2002/167-A dated 16th August, 2017.Smt. Baruah is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. She joined Assam State Electricity State Board (ASEB) in the year 2000 and had worked in diff erent capacities as Chief Accounts Officer, ASEB, Chief General Manager (F&A), APDCL for the last twelve (12) years. Smt Baruah has overall experience in Finance & Accounts for more than seventeen (17) years.She is also appointed as Director in the the Board of Directors of Assam Power Prject Development Company Limited (APPDCL).
7.    Disclosures and complianceThere was no transaction of material nature with Directors or the Management or their a. relatives having potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.There was no instances of non-compliance of any provisions of Law, guidelines issued by b. any regulatory authorities as well as no penalties was imposed on the Company during the last three years.During the year, no expenses was incurred which are personal in nature and incurred for c. the Board of Directors and Top Management.The Company has spent d. `111.75 Lakhs  on CSR and Sustainability activities out of the budgeted amount of ` 406.05 Lakhs during the financial year 2016-2017. The balance amount of committed and unspent amount of ` 304.10 Lakhs on CSR activities has been carried to the financial year 2017-2018.   During the year under review, no case was filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of e. Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
8.   Means of communication of financial performanceAGCL, being a non listed company, publishing of quarterly/half yearly and annual financial statements are not mandatory. However, as a good corporate practice, the Company has been sharing relevant information with its shareholders as well as other stakeholders from time to time through its web site (www.assamgas.org ), Annual Report, etc.
9.    Management Discussion & Analysis ReportA detailed chapter on Management Discussion & Analysis is incorporated in the Directors’ Report.Financial year- AGCL follows the financial year from 1st April to 31st March.Since the Company’s shares are not listed, market price of share is not available.
General information to shareholders:-

Number of AGM 55th   Annual General MeetingDate and Time 26th September, 2017Time: 4.30 P.M.Venue Assam Gas Company Limited
Co-ordination Office : Adams Plaza, 1st Floor,Christian Basti, G. S. Road, Guwahati-781005
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Dividend payment The Board recommends Dividend @ 12.5% on its paid-up share capital of `16.91 Crores to the shareholders. If approved by the shareholders, the same will be paid within 30 days from the date of declaration.Since the Company’s shares are not listed, market price of share is not available.
Share Transfer system:The Board of Directors considers the request for transfer/transmission of shares etc. Shareholding Pattern as on 31-03-2017:

Sl. No. Name of shareholder
Capital 

contribution in `
Nos of shares 

held
Percentage of 
holding (%)1. Governor of AssamIndustries & Commerce Deptt. Govt of Assam 16,91,44.800/- 1,691,448 99.99%

2. Finance Deptt., Govt of Assam 100/- 1 0.01%
Total 16,91,44,900/- 16,91,449 100%

Registered Office:

CIN: U11101AS1962SGC001184Assam Gas Company Limited CampusP.O. Duliajan, Dist: DibrugarhPin-786602Assam
Co-ordination Office:1st Floor “Adams Plaza”, Christian Basti,G.S. Road, Guwahati-781005Assam
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Annexure A (Contd.)

To,
The Members,
M/s ASSAM GAS COMPANY LTD,
CIN: U11101AS1962SGC001184 
P. O: Duliajan, Dibrugarh
Assam – 786602, 

COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONDITIONSWe have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s ASSAM GAS 
COMPANY LTD (a Non-Listed PSU) for the year ended 31st March, 2017 as stipulated in the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for State Level Public Sector Units issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of Assam.The compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Guidelines except:Clause 3.1.1 relating to the Board of Directors /board of management / managing a. Committee shall have an optimum combination of Functional, Nominee and Independent Directors.Clause 3.1.3 relating to the number of Nominee Directors to be appointed by the b. Government which shall not exceed two.Clause 3.1.4 relating to the number of Independent Directors on the Board of the c. Company.Clause 3.4.3 relating to Guidelines and policies evolved by the State Government with d. respect to the structure, composition, selection, appointment and service conditions of the Board of Directors shall be strictly followed.Clause 4.1.1 relating to the composition of Audit Committee which states that two-thirds e. of the members of the Audit Committee shall be Independent Directors.Clause 4.1.2 relating to the chairman of the Audit Committee shall be an Independent f. Director.

BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries 

BIMAN DEBNATH 
   B. Com.., LLB, DTL., FCS.

Flat No- 402, Block-C, Prashanti  Pride, 
Tarun Nagar, ABC, Guwahati -781005, Assam, India

             Tele : 0361-2463370(O), 9864028145(M)  
   Email: csbimandebnath@gmail.com
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Clause 4.4 relating to the Audit Committee should meet at least four times in a year and g. not more than four months shall elapse between two meetings and the quorum shall be either two members or one third of the members of the Audit Committee whichever is greater, but a minimum of two Independent members must be present.Clause 5.1 relating to the constitution of a remuneration committee comprising of atleast h. three Directors (i.e., Nominee Directors or Independent Directors), and the Committee should be headed by an Independent Director.Clause 6.1 relating to Composition of the Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Company i. which states that atleast one Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the Holding Company shall be a Director of its Subsidiary Company.We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or eff ectiveness with which the Management has conducted the Aff airs of the Company.
 For Biman Debnath & Associates
 Company Secretaries
    
    
                                                                                                                     
Date: 07/09/2017 Biman Debnath
Place: Guwahati (Proprietor)
 C.P. No. 5857
 FCS No. 6717

BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries 

BIMAN DEBNATH 
   B. Com.., LLB, DTL., FCS.

Flat No- 402, Block-C, Prashanti  Pride, 
Tarun Nagar, ABC, Guwahati -781005, Assam, India

             Tele : 0361-2463370(O), 9864028145(M)  
   Email: csbimandebnath@gmail.com



[ 32 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

Annexure B Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST March, 2017[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To, 
The Members, 
M/s ASSAM GAS COMPANY LTD,
CIN: U11101AS1962SGC001184
P.O Duliajan, Dibrugarh,
Assam- 786602

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s ASSAM GAS COMPANY LTD (hereinafter called 
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the Corporate Conducts and Statutory Compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
Based on my verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit and visit to the workstation, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the provisions of: The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; (i) The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.(ii) I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries 

BIMAN DEBNATH 
   B. Com.., LLB, DTL., FCS.

Flat No- 402, Block-C, Prashanti  Pride, 
Tarun Nagar, ABC, Guwahati -781005, Assam, India

             Tele : 0361-2463370(O), 9864028145(M)  
   Email: csbimandebnath@gmail.com
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BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries 

BIMAN DEBNATH 
   B. Com.., LLB, DTL., FCS.

Flat No- 402, Block-C, Prashanti  Pride, 
Tarun Nagar, ABC, Guwahati -781005, Assam, India

             Tele : 0361-2463370(O), 9864028145(M)  
   Email: csbimandebnath@gmail.com

Factories Acts and Rules ;a. The Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules,1989;b. The Environment (Protection) Act,1986;c. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act,1981;d. Petroleum and Minerals Pipelines (Acquisition of Rights of User Inland) Act, e. 1962Petroleum and Natural  Gas Regularity Board Act, 2006f. The Acts which are not applicable to the Company though forming part of the prescribed Secretarial Audit Report have not been considered while preparing this Secretarial Audit Report.Further, I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) (i) Act, 2013 The Information Technology Act, 2000(ii) Other Order, Laws and Instructions of the Government of Assam.(iii) During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. except the following:-
The Company has not complied with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act 1. 
read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 
with relation to the appointment of Independent Director during the financial year under 
review.

Website disclosure as per Section 136(1)(a) of the separate audited accounts of DNP Limited 2. 
being its Subsidiary Company has not been displayed in the Company’s respective website for 
the financial year 2015-16.

 The alterations of the Articles of Association of the Company as per the new Companies Act, 3. 
2013 is still pending.

The agreement with the Subsidiary Company i.e., M/s DNP Limited for using the premises of 4. 
the Company as office premises of the Subsidiary Company has expired and not renewed. 5. It is observed that the Departmental Heads are not upto date with the various Statutory 
Compliance requirements as applicable to the Company with respect to their functional 
area. These needs to be corrected and improved so that compliance requirements are met 
and declarations of compliance of the same is submitted to the Board.
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BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries 

BIMAN DEBNATH 
   B. Com.., LLB, DTL., FCS.

Flat No- 402, Block-C, Prashanti  Pride, 
Tarun Nagar, ABC, Guwahati -781005, Assam, India

             Tele : 0361-2463370(O), 9864028145(M)  
   Email: csbimandebnath@gmail.com

The Company has not displayed the name of the Occupier/Manager as per the Factories Act 6. 
1948 in the factory premises.

The Company could not obtain the consent to operate from the pollution control department 7. 
inspite of payment of arrear dues as well as current dues.

Trade License from the concerned authority i.e. the Local authority has not been obtained 8. 
for the trading activities undertaken by the Company as per the state Laws.

As informed and apprised by the Company, being a State Government Company, the 
appointment of Directors are done by the State Government and the Government has not yet 
appointed or nominated any Independent Director on the Board of the Company.

I further report that:The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 All the decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

For, Biman Debnath & Associates
                              Company Secretaries

    
                                           Sd/-

Place: Guwahati
Date: 07th September, 2017

                               (C S Biman Debnath)
                                             Proprietor

C.P. No.5857/ FCS No. 6717

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is ANNEXURE-A, and forms and integral 
part of this Report.
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BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries 

BIMAN DEBNATH 
   B. Com.., LLB, DTL., FCS.

Flat No- 402, Block-C, Prashanti  Pride, 
Tarun Nagar, ABC, Guwahati -781005, Assam, India

             Tele : 0361-2463370(O), 9864028145(M)  
   Email: csbimandebnath@gmail.com

Annexure A

To,
The Members, 
M/s ASSAM GAS COMPANY LTD,
CIN: U11101AS1962SGC001184
P.O Duliajan, Dibrugarh,
Assam- 786602Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 1. responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 2. assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 3. Accounts of the Company.Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance 4. of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 5. standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 6. nor of the efficacy or eff ectiveness with which the management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.
For, Biman Debnath & Associates

                              Company Secretaries
    

                                           Sd/-

Place: Guwahati
Date: 07th September, 2017

                               (C S Biman Debnath)
                                             Proprietor

C.P. No. 5857/ FCS No. 6717
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II. Management Replies to:
Observations of the Secretarial Auditor on Assam Gas Company Limited for the year 2016-2017:

Secretarial Auditors observations for 2016-2017 Management Reply

1. The Company has not complied with the provisions of Section 149 of 
the Companies Act read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 with relation to the 
appointment of Independent Director during the financial year under 
review.

The Company has written to the 
Government of Assam enclosing 
a list of probable candidates 
who are eligible for Independent 
Directors. The Reply from the 
Government of Assam is awaited.

2. Website disclosure as per Section 136(1)(a) of the separate audited 
accounts of DNP Limited being its Subsidiary Company has not been 
displayed in the Company’s respective website for the financial year 
2015-16.

Already complied.

3. The alterations of the Articles of Association of the Company as per the 
new Companies Act, 2013 is still pending.

The alterations of the Articles of 
Association of the Company are 
in process.

4. The agreement with the Subsidiary Company i.e., M/s DNP Limited for 
using the premises of the Company as office premises of the Subsidiary 
Company has expired and not renewed.

Noted for compliance

5. It is observed that the Departmental Heads are not upto date with 
the various Statutory Compliance requirements as applicable to the 
Company with respect to their functional area. These needs to be 
corrected and improved so that compliance requirements are met and 
declarations of compliance of the same is submitted to the Board.

Noted for compliance.
6. The Company has not displayed the name of the Occupier/Manager as 

per the Factories Act 1948 in the factory premises.
Noted for compliance.

7. The Company could not obtain the consent to operate from the 
pollution control department inspite of payment of arrear dues as well 
as current dues.

Noted for corrective action.

8. Trade License from the concerned authority i.e. the Local authority 
has not been obtained for the trading activities undertaken by the 
Company as per the state Laws.

Noted for compliance

9. As informed and apprised by the Company, being a State 
Government Company, the appointment of Directors are done by 
the State Government and the Government has not yet appointed 
or nominated any Independent Director on the Board of the 
Company.

Action taken as mentioned in 
point (1)

I further report that:The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. All the decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Annexure - B (Contd.)
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FORM NO. AOC -2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.]Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis :

Names of 
the related 
party and 
nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
Contracts/
arrangement/
transactions

Duration of
Contracts/
arrangement/
transactions

Salient terms 
of contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including the 
value, if any

Date of 
approval 
by the 
Board

Amount 
paid as 
advance, 
if any

DNP Limited  
(DNPL)

Reimbursement of salary and other expenses incurred by AGCL for the persons deputed in DNPL and other expenses related to DNPL. 

Ongoing 
transactions

DNPL will 
reimburse AGCL 
the manpower 
cost on Cost to 
the Company 
basis which 
comes to 
approximately 
100% of 
the actual 
salary paid.                      
(Rs.174.96Lakhs)

2009 Nil

DNP Limited  
(DNPL)

Payment of rental and electricity charges for office accommodation to AGCL
Ongoing 
transactions

`24.32 Lakhs Not 
applicable

Nil

DNP Limited  
(DNPL)

Payment of Interest on Loan to AGCL Ongoing 
transaction

` 524.59 Lakhs February, 
2016

Nil

DNP Limited  
(DNPL)

Sale of Project Surplus Pipes One-time 
Transaction

` 24.56 Lakhs 6th August, 
2016

Nil

DNP Limited  
(DNPL)

Dividend received from DNPL Ongoing 
transaction

` 145.01 Lakhs Not 
applicable

Nil 

Annexure - C
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Form AOC-1(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in `.)(` in thousands)
Sl. No. Particulars Details1.       1. Name of the subsidiary DNP Limited2.       2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if diff erent from the holding company’s reporting period NA3.       3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries NA

4.       4. Share capital ` 1,672,5005.       5. Reserves & surplus ` 351,5516.       6. Total assets ` 2,886,5127.       7. Total Liabilities(excluding shareholders fund) ` 862,4618.       8. Investments NIL9.       9. Turnover `665,0801010. Profit before taxation ` 307,0351111. Provision for taxation(MAT + Deferred Tax Provision) ` 172,1601212. Profit after taxation ` 134,8751313. Proposed Dividend ` 41,8131414. % of shareholding 51%As per our report of even date                                                      For and on behalf of the Board of DirectorsFor  S. K. Mallick & Co.Chartered AccountantsFirm Regd. No. 324892E                                                   A. K. Sharma                            S. Kalita                                                                                                  Managing Director                 Director                                                                                                  DIN: 07285877                       DIN:07845004(CA PRADIP BAKSI)Partner(Membership No. 054264)                                               Vijay Kr. L.,                              D. Dev Gupta      Chief Financial Officer         Company SecretaryPlace: GuwhatiDate: 25th July, 2017

Annexure - D
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures     ANNEXURE-D

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies and Joint Ventures
I.Name of associates/Joint Ventures Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited1.  Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March 20172.  Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end 31st March 2017
No. 1,00,000 equity shares Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 1,00,000@ Rs. 100 each share

` 1,00,00,000/-Extend of Holding% 25.51%3.  Description of how there is significant influence Associate4.  Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated5.  Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet `16,50,27,791/-
6.  Profit/Loss for the year ` 11,30,03,312/-i.        Considered in Consolidation -ii.       Not Considered in Consolidation -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations- N.A.2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- N.A.As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of DirectorsFor  S. K. Mallick & Co.Chartered AccountantsFirm Regd. No. 324892E                                          A. K. Sharma                           S. Kalita                                                                                         Managing Director                Director                                                                                         DIN: 07285877                      DIN: 07845004(CA PRADIP BAKSI)Partner(Membership No. 054264)                                      Vijay Kr. L.,                             D. Dev Gupta      Chief Financial Officer        Company SecretaryPlace: GuwhatiDate: 25th July, 2017
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Annexure -E
FORM NO. MGT 9

Pursuant to  Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration ) Rules,  2014.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
For the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:i CIN U11101AS1962SGC001184ii Registration Date 31/03/1962iii Name of the Company ASSAM GAS COMPANY LTDiv Category of the Company PRIVATE COMPANY/LIMITED BY SHARESv Address of the Registered office & contact details

 
Address : P. O. DULIAJANTown / City : DIBRUGARHPin Code: 786602State : ASSAMCountry Name   :                          INDIATelephone (with STD Code)     : 0364-2800202Fax Number   : 0364-2800221Email Address : info@assamgas.orgWebsite, if any: www.assamgas.orgvi Whether listed company No

vii
Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agents ( RTA ):-Name of RTA: NilAddress     : NilTown / City    : NilState             :      NilPin Code: NilTelephone      : NilFax Number   : NilEmail Address : Nil

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANYAll the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-
Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of 
main products / services

NIC Code of the Product / 
service

%  to total turnover of the 
company1 Transportation  and distribution of Natural Gas 99611912 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -No. of Companies for which information is being filled 2
Sl. 
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS 
OF THE COMPANY

CIN/GLN
HOLDING/ 

SUBSIDIARY 
/ASSOCIATE

% of 
shares 

held

Applicable 
Section1 DNP Limited U51410AS2007SGC008410 Subsidiary 51.00% 2(87)2 Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited U23201TR1990SGC003451 Associate 25.51% 2(6)
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or 
Manager:

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration
Name of MD/WTD/ 

Manager Total Amount
A.K.Sharma   1 Gross salary 18,42,410   18,42,410(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 17,62,478   17,62,478(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 79,932   79,932(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 - - - -

2 Stock Option - - - -3 Sweat Equity - - - -4  Commission - - - --  as % of profit - - - --  others, specify - - - -5  Others, please specify - - - -Total (A) 18,42,410   18,42,410Ceiling as per the Act 79 Crs (approx)  being 11% of the Net Profit as per Section 197 & 198 of Companies Act,2013
Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration
Name of Directors Total 

AmountA B C1 Independent Directors     Fee for attending board committee meetings     
Commission - - - -Others, please specify - - - -Total (1)     2 Other Non-Executive Directors R. Hazarika A. K. 

Borkotoky
H.A. 

Khan
 Fee for attending board committee meetings 40000 15000 10000 -Commission - - - -Others, please specify - - - - Total (2)      Total (B)=(1+2) - - - - Total Managerial Remuneration      Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA
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REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration
Key Managerial Personnel

CFO
 Company 
Secretary

Total1 Gross salary 15,01,802 8,83,125 23,84,927(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 14,64,157 8,63,455 23,27,612
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 37,645 19,670 57,315(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961  - -2 Stock Option - - -3 Sweat Equity - - -4  Commission - - - -  as % of profit - - - -   others, specify… - - -5 Others, please specify - - -Total 15,01,802 8,83,125 23,84,927

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type

Section 
of the 

Companies 
Act

Brief
Description

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority
[RD / 
NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANYPenalty - - Nil - -Punishment - - Nil - -Compounding - - Nil - -
B. DIRECTORSPenalty - - Nil - -Punishment - - Nil - -Compounding - - Nil - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULTPenalty - - Nil - -Punishment - - Nil - -Compounding - - Nil - -
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Annexure-F

Corporate Social Responsibility and SustainabilityWith a strong commitment towards socioeconomic development and environmental protection of the region, AGCL has taken up various CSR initiatives for improving the living conditions of less privileged people in the operational area of the company. The vision of sustainable inclusive growth drives both business as well as corporate social responsibility activities. The CSR & Sustainability Policy of the Company was approved by the Board on 23rd April, 2015 which was subsequently revised by the Board in its meeting held on 29th June, 2016 to enhance its scope in line with provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 
OBJECTIVE: The objective of the Policy is to:(a) Formulate, implement, monitor and evaluate CSR and sustainability projects / activities through a structured mechanism.(b) Include CSR proposals in the company’s annual budget and ensure eff ective utilization of the allocated resources.(c) Provide a monitoring and evaluation methodology / philosophy.The Policy is to ensure conformity to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VII, and applicable guidelines on CSR and Sustainability as issued / may be issued by Ministry of Corporate Aff airs, Govt of India, Deptt of Public Enterprises, Govt of Assam and in their absence, by Deptt of Public Enterprises, Govt of India.The CSR structure of Assam Gas Company Ltd consists of two tiers:Tier –I :   comprising of at least three members of the Board representing functional, nominee and independent directors.Tier – II :  Nodal Officer assisted by a team of officials which will comprise upto six employees of the company from various functional areas.(a) The Tier-I Committee recommends the proposals for approval of the Board exceeding                   

` 5.00 Lakhs in each case. It approves the CSR Projects and Budget for the year and also monitor implementation of the approved Policy and projects, evaluate performance of the projects / activities and report on a semi-annual basis to the Board. The Tier-I Committee acts as advisor to Tier-II CSR committee.(b) The Tier-II Committee is to be chaired by the Nodal Officer and is responsible for the following:(i) Identify CSR and Sustainability projects on the basis of need assessment based on surveys conducted in house or through external agencies, discussions with stakeholders, civic bodies, etc.(ii) Identify and propose suitable and competent agencies which may be able to execute the projects for and on behalf of the company.(iii) Monitor implementation of the projects.(iv) Any other CSR related activity such as media management, etc.
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Out of `406.05 Lakhs available for 2016-2017 which includes carry over from previous year, unspent administrative overheads, etc, `299.00  Lakhs was allocated to various projects of which 
`111.75 Lakhs was spent till 31st March 2017.  Some of the projects are long term and payments are being released based on project execution milestones. The balance of ` 107.00 Lakhs (comprising unallocated and unspent overheads) has been added to the CSR fund for financial year 2017-2018.  Unallocated amounts include:-a) projects withdrawn to avoid duplication of eff orts by other agencies / governmentb) funds kept for meeting any emergent requirements. Members of the CSR & Sustainability Committee confirm that implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.
Shri Sidhartha Bordoloi  Shri Sanat Kalita   Shri A. K. Sharma                Director     Chairman, CSR Committee                                          Director
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ANNEXURE - F TO DIRECTORS' REPORT (contd)1 A brief outline of the Company`s CSR Policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs and the composition of CSR Committee. Outline of CSR Policy : Promoting health care and sanitation and making (a) available safe drinking water under Clause (i) of Schedule VII of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013. Promoting education, employment enhancing vocation (b) skills, livelihood enhancement projects under Clause- 
(ii) of Schedule VII of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013Promoting gender equality, empowering women and (c) measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups under Clause- (iii) of Schedule VII of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological (d) balance under Clause (iv) of Schedule VII of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013. Promotion and development of traditional arts and (e) handicrafts under Clause v Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013. Contribution to funds set up by the Central Government (f) for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of women under Clause- (viii) of Schedule VII of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013. Rural Development Projects under Clause- (x) of Schedule VII of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013

Refer to following Sections of the Directors’ Report :(a) Corporate Social Re s p o n s i b i l i t y and (b) Disclosures: CSR             Committee in this Report.

Proposed Projects during the year 2016-2017 :Development work at Soraguri Sapori• Project Rupkathar Gaon – Chapatoli 1 into a model village• Project Pratyasha – Skill development & placement• Project Deepsikha – Rehabilitation Centre for Cancer patients• Janitorial Service at AMCH,Dibrugarh• Project Ashadeep – Distribution of 500 solar lamps• Web link to CSR Policy & Projects : ww.assamgas.org/csr.html

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 
for the financial year 2015-16

Annexure – F
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2 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years `9850.00
3 Prescribed CSR expenditure (Two percent of the amount mentioned in item 2 above) ` 197.00 Lakhs
4 Details of CSR spent during the financial year                                                                                                           ` 112 Lakhs
5 Total Amount to be spent for the Financial Year 2016-17(including carried over from previous year)(a) Total Funds Available(b) Allocated for Projects ` 406.05 Lakhs

` 299.00 Lakhs
6 Amount unspent, if any

(including committed but not spent till 31st March 2017)
` 304.10 Lakhs

7 Manner in which the amount spent during the year As per Memorandum of Understandings signed with the implementation partners / beneficiariesDETAILS OF AMOUNT SPENT ON CSR ACTIVITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2016-17
Sl
No

CSR Project or Activity 
Identifi ed

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered 

(Clause No 
of Schedule 

VII to the 
Companies 
Act, 2013 as 

amended

Project of Program
1. Local Area or 

other 
2. Specify the 

state and district 
where projects 

or programs 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
Project or 
Program 

wise
 (`in lakhs)

Amount 
spent 
on the 

Projects or 
Programs. 
Sub Heads 
(1) Direct 

Expenditure 
on 

Projects or 
Programs 

(2) 
Overheads
(`in lakhs)

Cumulative 
Expenditure 

upto the 
Reporting 

Period, 
i.e.,FY 2016-

2017
(`in lakhs)

Amount Spent 
Direct or through 

Implementing 
Agency

1 Project Parijat Kanan Clause(iv) Dibrugarh, 
Tinsukia 16.08 14.73 15.48 Direct

2 Project Parimal Basudha Clause(i) Dibrugarh 45.08 22.54 33.81 Direct

3 Project Shyamalima Clause(iv) Duliajan 33.00 19.73 19.73 Implementing 
Agency

4 Project Rupkathar Gaon Clause(x) Dibrugarh 150.00 24.17 24.17 Implementing 
Agency

5 Project Pratyasha Clause(ii) Upper Assam 40.00 23.43 35.40 Implementing 
Agency

6 Project Deepsikha Clause(iii) Jorhat 34.00 0.00 8.63 Implementing 
Agency

7 Project Ashadeep Clause(ii) Upper Assam 10.00 4.50 4.50 Implementing 
Agency

8 One term misc. exp Upper Assam 2.65 2.65

Total 328.16 111.75 123.77
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ASSAM GAS COMPANY LIMITED

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of ASSAM GAS COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of 1. ‘Assam Gas 
Company Limited’ (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2017, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial statements”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 2. of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.          This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
Auditor’s Responsibility Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements 3. based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 4. and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 5. Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 6. 
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disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 7. a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 8. us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March, 2017, and its financial performance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by 1. the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 2. (a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. (b)in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; (c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; (d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; (e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; (f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating eff ectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
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report in “Annexure B”; and (g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements – Refer Note 33 (v) & 33(x) to the standalone Ind AS financial statements; ii. the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts – Refer Note 10 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements; iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and iv. the Company has provided requisite disclosures in its standalone Ind AS financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer 34 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.As required by Section 143 (5) of the Act, we report as per Directions and sub-directions received from Comptroller & Auditor General of India as under :
DirectionsThe Company has not been selected for disinvestment.1. The company has made provision Rs. 5,58,71,289/- during the year towards bad and doubtful debts.2. There are no inventories lying with third parties & Assets received as gift from Govt. or other 3. authorities.There are no pending legal / arbitration cases except cases for carrying out normal course 4. of business.
Sub-Directions

Land1. (i)  Title / Lease Deeds : We have examined Title/ Lease Deeds of the landed property of the Company property, whether freehold / leasehold. In the course of our examination it was observed that the land where the administrative Office and Compressor Machines of the company are situated, has not been registered in its name.  The said land is yet to be formally transferred to the company – which was allotted by the Government of Assam to the company in the year 1968; and since then under their occupation, however the company has initiated action in this regard.  We have not come across any other cases where deeds are not available or that title is disputed or the property in under encroachment. 
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(ii) Physical Survey: The Company did not conduct physical survey during the year.
Trade and Other Receivables2. The amount receivable from various parties as reflected under Trade Receivables amounting (i) to Rs. 92,42,22,962/-remains mostly unreconciled and unconfirmed. The above amount includes Rs 40,38,37,114/- being long outstanding dues from ASEB and Rs. 20,32,26,549/- due from Estern India Powertech Ltd, which is under arbitrationNot applicable, in view of answer to sr. no. (i) above, being not confirmed at all.(ii)        For  S. K. Mallick& Co.      Chartered Accountants(Firm Registration No. 324892E)Place :  Guwahati (Camp)Dated : 25th July 2017                   [Pradip Baksi]         Partner                Membership No. 054264
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ ReportThe Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, we report that: (i)  (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. (b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company except that the land where the Administrative Office and the Compressor Machines of the company are situated, has not been registered in its name. The said land is yet to be formally transferred to the company – which was allotted by the Government of Assam to the company in the year 1968; and since then under their occupation, however the Company has initiated action in this regard. (d) The amount receivable from various parties as reflected under Trade Receivables amounting to Rs. 98,00,94,251/- remains mostly unreconciled and unconfirmed.(ii) As explained to us, the inventories of store items and spares were physically verified at regular intervals by the Management and discrepancies noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.(iii) The Company has granted loans to one (two) bodies corporate covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).(a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company (b) In the case of the loans granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in the payment of the principal and interest as stipulated. (c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to a body corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. (iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made. (v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. (vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
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Rules made by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of these records with a view to determining whether they are accurate or complete.(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of employees’ state insurance and duty of excise.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of duty of customs which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. However, according to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of income tax, sales tax, duty of excise, service tax and value added tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes: 
Name Of 
Statute

Nature Of 
Dues

Amount(Rs)
Period To Which 

The Amount Relates

Forum Where 
The Dispute Is 

PendingIncome Tax Act Tax 3 93 305 A.Y. 2006-07 Assessing OfficerIncome Tax Act Tax 54 479 A.Y. 2007-08 Assessing OfficerIncome Tax Act Tax 4 687 A.Y. 2008-09 CPC BangaloreIncome Tax Act Tax 43 82 510 A.Y. 2009-10 Assessing OfficerIncome Tax Act Tax 63 83 200 A.Y. 2010-11 Assessing OfficerIncome Tax Act Tax 14 56 630 A.Y. 2011-12 Assessing OfficerIncome Tax Act Tax 4 67 900 A.Y. 2012-13 Assessing OfficerAssam VAT ACT Tax (including interest) 21 03 41 937 F.Y. 2006-07 Assessing Officer
Assam VAT ACT Tax (including interest) 2 31 54 048 F.Y. 2007-08 Additional Commissioner, Assam VATAssam VAT ACT Tax (including interest) 21 43 54 758 F.Y. 2008-09 Assam Board of RevenueService Tax Tax 4 02 28 701 2007 to 2012 CESTAT, KolkataService Tax Tax 52 28 245 2012-2013 CESTAT, KolkataService Tax Tax 87 72 606 Oct’12 to Sep’13 CESTAT, Kolkata
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Service Tax Tax 1 52 56 361 Apr’09 to Mar’14 CESTAT, KolkataService Tax Tax 24 28 855 2013-2014 CESTAT, KolkataService Tax Tax 88 36 530 Oct’13 to Sep’14 CESTAT, KolkataService Tax Tax 93 14 202 Oct’14 to Sep’15 Commissioner Appeal, Guwahati(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. (ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public off er or further public off er (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable. (x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. (xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. (xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. (xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. (xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. (xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. (xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.        For  S. K. Mallick& Co.      Chartered Accountants(Firm Registration No. 324892E)
Place :  Guwahati (Camp)       [Pradip Baksi]Dated : 25th July 2017         PartnerMembership No. 054264        
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ASSAM GAS COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Auditors’ Responsibility Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated eff ectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating eff ectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating eff ectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material eff ect on the financial statements. 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating eff ectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
       For  S. K. Mallick& Co.      Chartered Accountants(Firm Registration No. 324892E)
Place :  Guwahati (Camp)   [Pradip Baksi]Dated :  25th July 2017  PartnerMembership No. 054264
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ADDENDUM TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2016-2017

Annexure-

I. Management Replies to :

Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General Of India on the Annual Accounts of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017:

Sl. 
No.

Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of 
India on the Annual Accounts of the Company for 

the year ended 31st March 2017
Management Reply

1.

A.  COMMENTS ON PROFITABILITY

Balance Sheet 1. 
Equity and Liabilities 
Liabilities 
Deferred Tax Liability (note-18) ` 7.22 croreThe Company wrote back accumulated depreciation of            

` 60.78 crore due to change in method of depreciation from Written down Value to Straight Line Method. After write back of accumulated depreciation the Net block of the depreciable assets stood at `120.69 crore and     
`52.31 crore as per Companies Act and Income Tax Act respectively. Thus the Company is required to create provision of `23.66 crore (applicable tax of 34.6080 percent on diff erential amount of `68.38 crore) for deferred tax liabilities, against which the Company has created provision for `7.22 crore only. This resulted in overstatement of General Reserve under ‘Other Equities’ and understatement of Other Financial Liabilities by            
`16.44 crore each.

Managements’ Reply :
Short provisioning of the 
‘Deferred Tax Liability’ stated 
above pertains to accounts for 
the Financial Year 2015-16 and 
the same will be reviewed and 
required rectification, if any, 
will be done in the next years’ 
accounts.  
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Managements’ Reply to 
Standalone Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31st 
March,2017
Sl. 
No Standalone Independent Auditor’s Report Managements’ Reply

1. Opinion 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS fi nancial statements give the information required by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the fi nancial position of the Company as at 31 
March, 2017, and its fi nancial performance including other comprehensive income, its cash fl ows 
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Managements’ Reply:  
Noted. 

2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 1. 
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a 
statement on the matters specifi ed in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 2. 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our a. 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company b. 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
The balance sheet, the statement of profi t and loss, the statement of cash fl ows and the c. 
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account; 
In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS fi nancial statements comply with the d. 
Accounting Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued 
thereunder; 
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017 e. 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifi ed as on 31 
March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 
With respect to the adequacy of the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting of f. 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report 
in “Annexure B”; and 
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with g. 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its fi nancial position in i. 
its standalone Ind AS fi nancial statements – Refer Note 33 (v) & 33(x) to the standalone 
Ind AS fi nancial statements; 
The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting ii. 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts – Refer Note 10 to the standalone Ind AS fi nancial statements; 
There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the iii. 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and
The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its standalone Ind AS fi nancial iv. 
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specifi ed Bank Notes during the 
period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 and these are in accordance with 
the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer 34 to the standalone Ind AS 
fi nancial statements.

Managements’ Reply:  
Compliance Report, Noted 

for future guidance. 

As required by Section 143 (5) of the Act, we report as per Directions and sub-directions received 
from Comptroller & Auditor General of India as under :
Directions

The Company has not been selected for disinvestment.1. 
The company has made cumulative provision Rs. 5,58,71,289/- but no provision made during 2. 
the year, towards bad and doubtful debts.
There are no inventories lying with third parties & Assets received as gift from Govt. Or 3. 
other authorities.
There are no pending legal / arbitration cases except cases for carrying out normal course 4. 
of business.

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

Annexure - IV
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Sub-Directions
Land1. 

Title / Lease Deeds : We have examined Title/ Lease Deeds of the landed property of the i. 
Company property, whether freehold / leasehold. In the course of our examination it was 
observed that the land where the administrative Offi ce and Compressor Machines of the 
company are situated, has not been registered in its name.  The said land is yet to be 
formally transferred to the company – which was allotted by the Government of Assam to 
the company in the year 1968; and since then under their occupation, however the company 
has initiated action in this regard.  We have not come across any other cases where deeds 
are not available or that title is disputed or the property in under encroachment. 
Physical Survey: The Company did not conduct physical survey during the year.ii. 

Managements’ Reply:  
Noted. 

Trade and Other Receivables2. 
The amount receivable from various parties as refl ected under Trade Receivables (i) 
amounting to Rs. 92,42,22,962/-remains mostly unreconciled and unconfi rmed. The 
above amount includes Rs 40,38,37,114/- being long outstanding dues from ASEB and Rs. 
20,32,26,549/- due from Eastern India Powertech Ltd, which is under arbitration

Managements’ Reply:  
The company has sought 
confi rmation of balances 

of all the debtors but reply 
has been received from 

132 nos. of consumers only 
confi rming the balances. 

However, this will be looked 
into in future. 

The outstanding balances 
of Rs.40,38,37,114/- from 
ASEB is due to certain 
issues raised by ASEB 
and the Company has 

taken necessary steps to 
resolve the issues through 
discussions at the earliest, 
while for the outstanding 

balance of Rs.20,32,26,549/- 
from EIPL the Company has 
resorted to legal recourse 
through Arbitration for the 

recovery of the same. 

Not applicable, in view of answer to sr. no. (i) above, being not confi rmed at all.(i) 
Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone Ind AS fi nancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, we report that: 
(i)  (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of fi xed assets. 
        (b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verifi cation of its fi xed assets 

by which fi xed assets are verifi ed in a phased manner over a period of three years. In 
accordance with this programme, certain fi xed assets were verifi ed during the year and no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verifi cation. In our opinion, this periodicity of 
physical verifi cation is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. 

      (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the Company except that the land where the Administrative Offi ce 
and the Compressor Machines of the company are situated, has not been registered in its 
name. The said land is yet to be formally transferred to the company – which was allotted 
by the Government of Assam to the company in the year 1968; and since then under their 
occupation, however the Company has initiated action in this regard. 

   (d) The amount receivable from various parties as refl ected under Trade Receivables 
amounting to Rs. 98,00,94,251/- remains mostly unreconciled and unconfi rmed.

Managements’ Reply :  Sl. 
(a) to (c) noted. For sl. (d), 
the company has sought 
confi rmation of balances 

of all the debtors but reply 
has been received from 

132 nos. of consumers only 
confi rming the balances. 

However, this will be looked 
into in future. 
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(ii) As explained to us, the inventories of store items and spares were physically verifi ed at regular 
intervals by the Management and discrepancies noticed on physical verifi cation of stocks as 
compared to book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of 
account.

Managements’
Reply:  Noted.

(iii) The Company has granted loans to one (two) bodies corporate covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

(a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had 
been granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Act were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company 

(b) In the case of the loans granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in the payment of the 
principal and interest as stipulated. 

(c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to a body corporate listed 
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and 
investments made. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules 
made by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the 
opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, 
however, not made a detailed examination of these records with a view to determining whether 
they are accurate or complete.

Managements’
Reply:  Noted.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of 
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of 
customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during 
the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not 
have any dues on account of employees’ state insurance and duty of excise. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2017 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable.

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of duty of customs 
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 
However, according to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of income tax, 
sales tax, duty of excise, service tax and value added tax have not been deposited by the Company 
on account of disputes: 

Name Of Statute Nature Of Dues Amount(`) Period To Which 
The Amount Relates

Forum Where The 
Dispute Is Pending

Income Tax Act Tax 3 93 305 A.Y. 2006-07 Assessing Offi cer
Income Tax Act Tax 54 479 A.Y. 2007-08 Assessing Offi cer
Income Tax Act Tax 4 687 A.Y. 2008-09 CPC Bangalore
Income Tax Act Tax 43 82 510 A.Y. 2009-10 Assessing Offi cer
Income Tax Act Tax 63 83 200 A.Y. 2010-11 Assessing Offi cer
Income Tax Act Tax 14 56 630 A.Y. 2011-12 Assessing Offi cer
Income Tax Act Tax 4 67 900 A.Y. 2012-13 Assessing Offi cer
Assam VAT ACT Tax (including interest) 21 03 41 937 F.Y. 2006-07 Assessing Offi cer

Assam VAT ACT Tax (including interest) 2 31 54 048 F.Y. 2007-08
Additional 

Commissioner, 
Assam VAT

Assam VAT ACT Tax (including interest) 21 43 54 758 F.Y. 2008-09 Assam Board of 
Revenue

Service Tax Tax 4 02 28 701 2007 to 2012 CESTAT, Kolkata
Service Tax Tax 52 28 245 2012-2013 CESTAT, Kolkata
Service Tax Tax 87 72 606 Oct’12 to Sep’13 CESTAT, Kolkata
Service Tax Tax 1 52 56 361 Apr’09 to Mar’14 CESTAT, Kolkata
Service Tax Tax 24 28 855 2013-2014 CESTAT, Kolkata
Service Tax Tax 88 36 530 Oct’13 to Sep’14 CESTAT, Kolkata

Service Tax Tax 93 14 202 Oct’14 to Sep’15 Commissioner 
Appeal, Guwahati

Managements’ Reply:  Noted 
for necessary action. In case 
of Income Tax, amounts due 
on account of dis-allowance 
of expenses for different 
years are on appeal and we 
have taken up the matter 
with the AO through our 
Tax consultants. In case of 
Service Tax, on issues like 
tax on MDC TC, Marketing 
Margin and other misc. 
Issues, the appeals are 
pending before the CESTAT 
and are yet to come up for 
hearing and we are following 
up the same through our Tax 
consultants. In case of VAT – 
VAT demanded on TC, are on 
appeal.    



[ 70 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any fi nancial institution, banks, 
government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company 
or on the Company by its offi cers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in 
the standalone Ind AS fi nancial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

Managements’ Reply:  
Noted. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act 1934. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal fi nancial control over fi nancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal fi nancial controls 
system over fi nancial reporting and such internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over fi nancial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 

Managements’ Reply to Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 1. 
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS fi nancial statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its 
associates and  jointly controlled entities as at 31st March, 2017, and their consolidated profi t/
loss and their consolidated cash fl ows for the year ended on that date. 

We did not audit the fi nancial statements of one subsidiary and one associate and jointly controlled 
entity of the holding company. These fi nancial statements have been audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
fi nancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 
of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, 
jointly controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
Our opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modifi ed in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance 
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS fi nancial statements.

Managements’
Reply:  Noted. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 1. 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, based on the comments in 
the auditors’ reports of the Holding company, subsidiary companies, associate companies and 
jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a statement on the 
matters specifi ed in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 2. 
(a)   We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
(b)  In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the holding 

company, subsidiary company and associate company and jointly controlled companies 
incorporated in India so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profi t and loss, the 
consolidated statement of cash fl ows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS fi nancial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued 
thereunder; 

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Holding Company 
and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate companies 
and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group 
companies, its associate companies and  jointly controlled companies incorporated in India 
is disqualifi ed as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act; 

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting of 
the Holding company, subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled 
companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in the Annexure and 

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

there were no   pending litigations which would impact the consolidated fi nancial i. 
position of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities; 
 the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities did not have any material ii. 
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.; and
there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education iii. 
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate 
companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India. 
 the holding company has provided requisite disclosures in its consolidated Ind AS iv. 
fi nancial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specifi ed Bank Notes during 
the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 and these are in accordance 
with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer 35 to the consolidated 
Ind AS fi nancial statements.

Managements’
Reply:  Noted the

compliance Report.

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and explanation given to us and based on the 
consideration of the reports of other auditors, the holding company, its subsidiaries, associates 
and jointly controlled entities which are incorporated in India has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal fi nancial controls system over fi nancial reporting and such internal fi nancial 
controls over fi nancial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the 
internal control over fi nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Managements’
Reply:  Noted.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASSAM GAS COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of 1. ‘Assam Gas 
Company Limited’ (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) its associates and  jointly controlled entities , comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 2. the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the the Group including its Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.  This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
Auditor’s Responsibility Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements 3. based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 4. and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 5. 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 6. disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 7. a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 8. to us, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of aff airs of the Group, its associates and  jointly controlled entities as at 31st March, 2017, and their consolidated profit/loss and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.  We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary and one associate and jointly controlled entity of the holding company. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS financial statements.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 9. Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company, subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 10. (a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. (b)  in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the holding company, subsidiary company and associate company and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
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(c) the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; (d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; (e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and  jointly controlled companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; (f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding company, subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India and the operating eff ectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in the Annexure and (g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: i.  there were no   pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities; ii.  the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.; andiii.  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India. iv. the holding company has provided requisite disclosures in its consolidated Ind AS financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer 35 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.       For  S. K. Mallick& Co.      Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 324892E)

Place  :  Guwahati (Camp)    [Pradip Baksi]
Dated :  25th July 2017   PartnerMembership No. 054264
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

 Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of ‘Assam Gas 
Company Limited’ (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) its associates and  jointly controlled entities , comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”), in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls The respective Board of Directors of the holding company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by these Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Auditors’ Responsibility Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the holding company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
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and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated eff ectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating eff ectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating eff ectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material eff ect on the financial statements. 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion In our opinion, to the best of our information and explanation given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of other auditors, the holding company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities which are incorporated in India has, in all material respects, an 
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adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating eff ectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
For  S. K. Mallick& Co.      Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 324892E)

Place  :  Guwahati (Camp)  [Pradip Baksi]
Dated :  25th July 2017       Partner         Membership No. 054264
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ASSAM GAS COMPANY LIMITED
DULIAJAN :: ASSAM

BALANCE SHEET
(Amount in Ruppees)

Particulars
Note 
No.

AS AT
31-03-2017

AS AT
31-03-2016

AS AT
01-04-2015

A ASSETS
1)  Non-current assets(a) Property, Plant & Equipments(i) Tangible assets 4    a. Gross Block 134 67 32 562 128 18 40 128 116 14 88 021    b. Less: Depreciation 11 84 94 151 5 80 04 103 0     c. Net Block 122 82 38 411 122 38 36 025 116 14 88 021    d. Revalued Fixed Assets 

122 82 38 411 122 38 36 025 116 14 88 021(b) Capital Work in progress 5 5 66 36 437 5 81 75 927 4 94 83 084(c) Non-current investments 6 86 30 00 000 86 30 00 000 86 30 00 000(d) Financial Assets 7 10 91 15 327 40 89 85 315  10 50 881(e) Other non-current assets 8  13 06 908  13 13 428  18 30 497
103 00 58 672 133 14 74 670 91 53 64 462

2) Current assets(a) Inventories 9 17 61 44 306 14 48 87 301 16 07 85 426(b) Financial Assets     - Trade receivables 10 92 42 22 962 100 46 67 681 83 79 18 201     - Cash and cash equivalents 11 395 55 86 071 299 61 79 566 292 48 28 115     - Short-term loans and advances 12 72 11 10 958 70 76 89 992 45 13 04 306(c) Other current assets 13 11 87 50 258 10 44 41 500 13 80 82 139
589 58 14 555 495 78 66 040 451 29 18 187TOTAL 815 41 11 638 751 31 76 735 658 97 70 670

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Equity      a. Equity Share Capital 14 16 91 44 900 16 91 44 900 16 91 44 900    b. Other Equity 15 661 26 55 955 594 36 21 222 528 94 63 783         
678 18 00 855 611 27 66 122 545 86 08 683

2. Liabilities    a. Non Current Liabilities        Financial Liabilities        -  Borrowings 16 0 0 0         -  Other Financial Liabilities 17 51 32 91 369 50 19 34 809 35 92 27 883     b. Deferred tax liabiltiy ( net) 18 7 21 94 005 6 55 77 114 5 73 40 345     c. Provisions 19  18 65 016  17 11 661 1 79 00 000
58 73 50 390 56 92 23 584 43 44 68 228
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3. Current Liabilities     a. Financial Liabilities         -  Trade payables 20 22 22 91 940 27 24 36 333 26 97 13 663        -  Other Financial Liabilities 17 2 59 08 200 3 66 40 700 3 17 62 825     b. Other current liabilities 21 16 70 04 942 16 40 68 440 8 68 44 064     c.  Provisions 22 36 97 55 311 35 80 41 557 30 83 73 207
78 49 60 393 83 11 87 030 69 66 93 759

TOTAL 815 41 11 638 751 31 76 735 658 97 70 670
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 1 & 2
Notes On Transition To Ind As 3 In terms of our report of even date attached to herewithFor S K Mallick & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No. 324892E

(CA. PRADIP BAKSI)
Partner

(Membership No. 054264)

A. K. Sharma S. KalitaManaging Director DirectorDIN: 07285877 DIN: 07845004
Vijay Kr. L.,  D. Dev GuptaChief Financial Officer  Company SecretaryPlace: GuwhatiDate: 25th July, 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the

Consolidated Financial Statements

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASSAM GAS COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of 1. ‘Assam 
Gas Company Limited’ (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) its associates and  jointly controlled entities , comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 2. the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the the Group including its Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
Auditor’s Responsibility

O3. ur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 4. and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 5. Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 6. 
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the disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 7. provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS fi nancial statements.
Opinion 

In 8. our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of aff airs of the Group, its associates and  jointly controlled entities as at 31st March, 2017, and their consolidated profit/loss and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary and one associate and jointly 9. controlled entity of the holding company. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 10. Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS financial statements.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued 11. by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company, subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. As12.  required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: (a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. (b)  in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the holding company, subsidiary company and associate company and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
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(c)  the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; (d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; (e)  on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and  jointly controlled companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; (f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding company, subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India and the operating eff ectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in the Annexure and (g)  with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: i. there were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities; ii. the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.; andiii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India. iv. the holding company has provided requisite disclosures in its consolidated Ind AS financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer 35 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
       For  S. K. Mallick& Co.      Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 324892E)

Place  :  Guwahati (Camp)

Dated :  25th July 2017 [Pradip Baksi]         Partner                Membership No. 054264
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report on the
Consolidated Financial Statements

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory  Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of ‘Assam Gas Company 
Limited’ (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) its associates and  jointly controlled entities , comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”), in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls The respective Board of Directors of the holding company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by these Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Auditors’ ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the holding company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated eff ectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating eff ectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating eff ectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 
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whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material eff ect on the financial statements. 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion In our opinion, to the best of our information and explanation given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of other auditors, the holding company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities which are incorporated in India has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating eff ectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
       For  S. K. Mallick& Co.      Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 324892E)

Place  :  Guwahati (Camp)

Dated :  25th July 2017             [Pradip Baksi]         Partner                Membership No. 054264



[ 128 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 129 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 130 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 131 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 132 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 133 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 134 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 135 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 136 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 137 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 138 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 139 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 140 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 141 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 142 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 143 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 144 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 145 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 146 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 147 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 148 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 149 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 150 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 151 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 152 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 153 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 154 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 155 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 156 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 157 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 158 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 159 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 160 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



[ 161 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Ind AS Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DNP Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial StatementsThe Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
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used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
OpinionIn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of aff airs (financial position) of the Company as at 31st March, 2017, and its profit/loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Other Matters
Incoming auditor to audit comparative information for adjustments to transition to Ind ASThe comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2016 and the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April, 2015 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended 31st March, 2016 and 31st March, 2015 dated 5th May, 2016 and 19th May, 2015 respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the diff erences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory RequirementsAs required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the 1. Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:2. (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.(e) Provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act regarding director's disqualification is not 



[ 163 ]ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

applicable vide notification F. No. 1/2/2014-CL. V dated 5th June, 2015 of Ministry of Corporate Aff airs.(f) With respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operative eff ectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure-B”.(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations give n to us:i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial statements ;ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable Law or Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.iv. The Company did not have any holding of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) and other denomination notes during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 as provided in note no. 35 of audited statement of accounts.
 For KANOI ASS OCIATES Chartered Accountants ICAI Regn. No: 309 101E
 Sd/- (AAKASH AGA RWALLA)Place : Dibrugarh PartnerDate : 18th May, 2017 M. No: 058427
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The Annexure-A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of DNP Limited, 
Duliajan for the year ended on 31st March, 2017. We report that:(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. (b) The major items of fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at periodic intervals which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its fixed assets. No material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. (c) Free hold land owned by the company as on 31.03.2017 stands at 54B-4K-15.43L (including 7B-3K-6.56L allotted by Govt. of Assam) out of which mutation is pending for 16B-4K-16.43L.(ii) As explained to us physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed.(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, sub-clauses (a), (b) & (c) of clause (iii) of the Order are not applicable to the company.(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Loans, Investment, Guarantees and Securities.(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, therefore the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of products/providing of services, to which the said rules are applicable and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth-tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Excise duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues wherever applicable and no undisputed amounts payable in respect of above referred statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, there are no dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, wealth-tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax on account of any dispute other than a Service Tax demand of Rs.11.14 lac (excluding penalty and interest) received from the office of the Commissioner of Central Excise & Service Tax, Dibrugarh vide their Order dated 31/03/2015 which has been disclosed under Note No. 33 of Financial Statement as Contingent Liability.
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(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to bank. The Company did not have any outstanding dues in respect o f a financial institution or debenture holders during the year.(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public off er or further public off er (including debt instruments) and term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the representation obtained from the management, we report that no case of fraud on or by the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.(xi) According to the information an d explanations given to us and the records examine d by us, the Company’s managerial remuneration has bee n paid and provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 as such this clause is not applicable to the company.(xiii) According to the information an d explanations given to us and the records examine d by us, the Company’s transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company did not make any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review as such this clause is not applicable to the company.(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as such this clause is not applicable to the company.
 For KANOI ASS OCIATES Chartered Accountants ICAI Regn. No: 309 101E
 Sd/- (AAKASH AGA RWALLA)Place : Dibrugarh PartnerDate : 18th May, 2017 M. No: 058427
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN 
DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DNP LIMITED, DULIAJAN

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DNP Limited (“the Company” ) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial ControlsThe Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Ctontrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated eff ectively in all material respects.Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating eff ectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating eff ectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReportingA company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of t he assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material eff ect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReportingBecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial re porting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
OpinionIn our opinion, the Company has, i n all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating eff ectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
 For KANOI ASS OCIATES Chartered Accountants ICAI Regn. No: 309 101E
 Sd/- (AAKASH AGA RWALLA)Place : Dibrugarh PartnerDate : 18th May, 2017 M. No: 058427
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Comments Of The Comptroller And Auditor General Of India Under 
Section 143(6)(B) Of The Companies Act, 2013 On The Financial 

Statements of DNP Ltd. (DNPL) For The Year Ended 31 March 2017The preparation of financial statements of DNP Ltd. (DNPL), for the year ended 31st March, 
2017, in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor, appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, under section 139(5) of the Act, is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit, in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them, vide their Audit Report dated 18 May, 2017.I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit, under section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of DNP Ltd. (DNPL), for the year ended 31st March, 2017. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently, without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

      Sd/-
Place: Guwahati (RASHMI AGGARWAL)
Date: 17/08/2017  Accountant General (Audit), Assam
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 In terms of our Report of even date attached
 For and on behalf of Kanoi Associates For and on behalf of the Board Chartered Accountants Firm Reg. No. 309101E Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- (CA. Aakash Agarwalla) A. K. Sharma S. K. Barua Membership No. 058427 Director Director  DIN-07285877 DIN-06503943Camp: Guwahati  Place: GuwahatiDate: 18-05-2017  Date: 18-05-2017  Sd/-  N. C. Adhikary  Company Secretary

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
` in thousands

Particulars  Note No
 As at  

31-Mar-2017
 As at  

31-Mar-2016
 As at 

1-Apr-2015I. ASSETS
1 Non-current Assetsa. Property,Plant and Equipment 4  2,570,941  2,660,526  2,810,106 b. Intangible assets under development 5  90  90  90 c. Other non-current assets 6  872  872  872  2,571,903  2,661,488  2,811,068 
2 Current Assetsa. Inventories 7  50,173  32,796  27,253 b. Financial Assets(i) Trade Receivables 8  120,297  134,760  117,301 (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9  133,592  69,801  43,480 c. Current Tax Assets (Net) 10  3,271  1,088  2,632 d. Other current assets 11  7,276  21,608  25,253 

 3,14,609  2,60,053  2,15,919 
TOTAL ASSETS  28,86,512  29,21,541  30,26,987 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES1 Equitya. Equity Share Capital 12  1,672,500  1,672,500  1,672,500 b. Other Equity 13  351,551  250,897  176,798  2,024,051  1,923,397  1,849,298 
LIABILITIES

2 Non-current Liabilitiesa. Financial Liabilities(i) Borrowings 14  108,000  378,000  648,000 (ii) Other financial liabilities 15  19,988  22,176  23,721 b. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 16  374,397  267,465  186,030  5,02,385  6,67,641  8,57,751 
3 Current Liabilitiesa. Financial Liabilities(i) Trade payables 17  28,133  40,326  57,559 (ii) Other financial liabilities 15  328,552  279,455  248,376 b. Other Current Liabilities 18  3,388  10,722  14,000 c. Provisions 19  3  -  3 

 360,076  330,503  319,938 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  2,886,512  2,921,541  3,026,987 Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies  1 & 2Notes to Financial Statement 3 - 34The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
` in thousands

Particulars  
Note

No
Year Ended 

31-Mar-2017
Year Ended 

31-Mar-2016I Revenues from Operations 20  665,080  628,329 II Other Income 21  19,823  6,615 III Total Revenue (I+II)  684,904  634,944 IV Expenses :Employee Benefits Expense 22  30,048  31,442 Finance Costs 23  54,460  91,099 Depreciation and Amortisation 4  136,967  153,792 Other Expenses 24  149,491  132,919 Total Expenses  370,966  409,252 V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III-IV)  313,938  225,692 VI Exceptional items  -  - VII Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)  313,938  225,692 VIII Extraordinary Items 25  6,902  - IX Profit before tax (VII- VIII)  307,035  225,692 X Tax Expense:1. Current tax  (MAT Payable)  65,228 0  48,015 2. Deferred tax 16  106,932 0  81,435 XI Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (IX - X)  134,875  96,242 XII Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations  -  - XIII Tax expense of discontinued operations  -  - XIV Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations(after tax) (XII-XIII)  - XV Profit/(loss) for the period (XI+XIV)  134,875  96,242 XVI Other Comprehensive IncomeA. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -  -      (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  -      (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - XVII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XV+XVI) (Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)  134,875  96,242 XVIII Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) 28[Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each]1. Basic  0.81  0.58 2. Diluted  0.81  0.58 Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 1&2Notes to Financial Statement 3-34The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. In terms of our Report of even date attached
 For and on behalf of Kanoi Associates For and on behalf of the Board Chartered Accountants Firm Reg. No. 309101E Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- (CA. Aakash Agarwalla) A. K. Sharma S. K. Barua Membership No. 058427 Director Director  DIN-07285877 DIN-06503943Camp: Guwahati  Place: GuwahatiDate: 18-05-2017  Date: 18-05-2017  Sd/-  N. C. Adhikary  Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
` in thousands ` in thousands31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESNET PROFIT BEFORE TAX BEFORE EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMSAND PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS  313,938  225,692 ADD ADJUSTMENTS FORImpact on Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments  (117)  (299)Provision for Project Surplus Material/ Inventory  (9,256)  - Depreciation  136,967  153,792 Interest paid  52,459  180,053  89,280  242,773  493,991  468,465 LESS ADJUSTMENTS FORInterest / Dividend / Brokerage Income  10,219  5,685 Other Non Cash Items  -  - Operating profit before working capital changes  483,771  462,780 ADJUSTMENTS FORTrade and other receivables  29,078  (13,712)Inventories  (8,121)  (5,543)Trade and other payables  27,697  12,627 Cash generated from operations (Before Extra Ordinary Items)  48,654  (6,628)Extra Ordinary Item (Loss on account of Fire)  (6,902)Direct taxes paid  (67,410)  (46,471)NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (AFTER TAX)  458,113  409,681 B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIESa) PURCHASE OF FIXED ASSETS  (47,577)  (7,520)b) INVESTMENT IN FIXED DEPOSITS  (15,075)c) INTEREST ON FIXED DEPOSITS  9,936  5,583 NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (52,716)  (1,937)C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESa) INTEREST PAID  (52,459)  (89,280)b) ISSUE OF SHARE CAPITAL  -  - c) SECURED LOAN  -  - d) UNSECURED LOAN  (270,000)  (270,000)e) PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND TAX  (34,221)  (22,143)NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (356,680)  (381,423)D. NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT  48,717  26,321 E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT CONSISTS OF :a) CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTi) Cash and Bank Balance  870  9,274 ii) Short Term Deposit with Banks  117,647  60,527 b) LESS : OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTi) Cash and Bank Balance  9,274  13,375 ii) Short Term Deposit with Banks  60,527  30,105 F. INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT  48,717  26,321  In terms of our Report of even date attached

 For and on behalf of Kanoi Associates For and on behalf of the Board Chartered Accountants Firm Reg. No. 309101E Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- (CA. Aakash Agarwalla) A. K. Sharma S. K. Barua Membership No. 058427 Director Director  DIN-07285877 DIN-06503943Camp: Guwahati  Place: GuwahatiDate: 18-05-2017  Date: 18-05-2017  Sd/-  N. C. Adhikary  Company Secretary
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CORPORATE INFORMATION1. DNP Limited (the company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. At present the Registered Office of the Company is situated at Adams Plaza, 1st Floor, Christian Basti, G.S. Road, Guwahati, Assam and the Operational Office is situated at AGCL Campus, Duliajan, Assam.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES2. 
A.  Basis for preparation These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the eff ect of the transition has been summarized in note no. 3.Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

B. Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that aff ect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Diff erence between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized.
C.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Landa)  Land acquired on outright purchase / perpetual lease basis are treated as free hold Land at cost plus incurred incidental expenses.
Fixed Asset other than Landb)  Fixed Assets are valued in accordance with Ind AS-16- Property, Plant and Equipment at cost on consistent basis inclusive of incidental expenses related thereto. Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment being tangible items which are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one year are 
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capitalized to the item of fixed assets to which it is related. The Company considers spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment costing ` 1,000 thousand or more as such tangible items to be capitalized.
Intangible Assets:c)  Intangible assets are recognized on the basis of recognition criteria as set out in Indian Accounting Standard Ind AS 38- Intangible Assets. Expenditure incurred for creating / acquiring intangible assets from which future economic benefits will flow over a period of time, are amortised over the estimated useful life of the asset if such useful life is finite. Intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortised, when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the entity. Intangible Assets with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment as per Ind AS 36-Impairment of Assets. Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically at each financial year end. On reviewing, if the useful life changes, the same is accounted for as changes in accounting estimates and if such a change has the eff ect of change of indefinite useful life to a finite useful life the same is treated in accordance with Ind AS 36.
Expenditure during construction period:d)  Direct expenses including borrowing cost incurred during construction period on capital projects are capitalised. Indirect expenses including related pre-production expenses are allocated to projects and are also capitalised.
Pre-operative Expendituree)  Pre-operative expenditure incurred during construction period are allocated on completion of the project after setting off  the income earned, if any.

D.  DepreciationDepreciation on fixed assets, other than those mentioned below is provided on Straight Line Method, at rates prescribed under schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Additions to fixed assets during the year are being depreciated from the date such Assets are capitalized.Assets costing upto (a) ` 5 thousand are depreciated fully in the year of capitalization.Cost of the leasehold land not exceeding 99 years is amortized over the lease period.(b) 
E. InventoriesInventories/Stores are valued at weighted average cost. Project materials identified as surplus are provided for 95% of the value. 
F. Revenue Recognitioni) Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue from services rendered is recognized net of Service Tax on performance of service based on agreements/arrangements with the concerned parties.
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ii) Other claims are booked when there is a reasonable certainty of recovery. Claims are reviewed on a periodical basis and if recovery is uncertain, provision is made in the accounts.iii) Income from sale of scrap is accounted for on realisation.iv) Dividend income is recognised when the company’s right to receive the dividend is established which can be reliably measured and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity.v) Interest income is recognised using the eff ective interest method.vi) Liquidated damages, if any, are accounted for as and when recovery is eff ected and the matter is considered settled by the Management. Liquidated damages, if settled after capitalisation of the assets and less than ` 500 thousand in each case are charged to revenue, otherwise adjusted against the cost of the relevant assets.vii) Insurance claim is accounted for on the basis of claims admitted by the insurers.
G.  Classification of Income/ExpensesExpenses are accounted for on accrual basis and provision is made for all known liabilities.Income/expenditure up to ` 100 thousand in each case pertaining to prior years is charged to the current year. Prepaid expenses up to ` 100 thousand in each case are charged to revenue as and when incurred.
H.  Borrowing CostsBorrowing cost of the funds that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets. The same is capitalized up to the date when the asset is ready for intended use or sale, after netting off  any income earned on temporary investment of such funds.
I.  Foreign Currency TransactionForeign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date a. of transaction. All exchange diff erences are dealt with as per Ind AS 21.b. Monetary items carried at historical cost denominated in foreign currency are converted c. at exchange rates prevailing at the year end. Any gain/loss arising out of such conversion is recognized in the Profit & Loss Account.

J.  Capital Grants

Government grants in the nature of promoters’ contribution are credited to Capital Reserve and treated as part of shareholders’ fund.

K.  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital CommitmentsProvisions are recognized when there is present legal or constructive obligation as a result a. 
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of past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. b. Contingent liabilities exceeding ̀  100 thousand in each case are disclosed by way of notes to accounts.Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts are disclosed c. in each case above ` 100 thousand.
L.  Taxes on Income The tax expense comprises of current tax & deferred tax charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss for the year. Provision for Current tax is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and rules thereunder applicable for the current financial year. Adjustments of Taxes/ Provisions are made on receipt of Intimation/ Deemed Intimation. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.Deferred tax expenses or benefit is recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. In the event of unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Other deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of realization in future. 
M.  Impairment of Assets

The values of Fixed Assets in respect of Cash Generating Units are reviewed by the Management for impairment at each Balance Sheet date if events or circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If the carrying value is more than the net selling price of the Asset or present value, the diff erence is recognized as an impairment loss. 
N.  Cenvat

Cenvat credit of Excise Duty on eligible material is recognized on receipt of such 
materials and Cenvat credit of Service Tax is recognized on payment of Service Tax to 
the Service Provider.

O. Financial Instruments

(a) Initial Recognition The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets are recognized 
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at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables. All financial liabilities except for Deposits from Customer which are maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date are initially measured at transaction price as the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
(b) Subsequent Recognition Financial assets and liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost except for Deposits from Customer which is measured at fair value through profit or loss.
(c) Fair Value of Financial instruments Fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities are made using variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The income approach has been adopted wherever valuation techniques are required to be applied on financial assets and liabilities.

P.    Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the 
shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration 
by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements
3. Transition to Ind ASAs per Note 2A, these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 31st March 2016, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act ('Previous GAAP'). The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the opening Ind AS balance sheet on the date of transition i.e. 1st April 2015.In preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at 1st April 2015 and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31st March 2016, the Company has adjusted amounts previously reported in the financial statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP, and how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has aff ected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. 
Explanation of transition to Ind AS In preparing the financial statement, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions.
Property, plant and equipment; investment property and intangibles exemption:The Company has elected to apply the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangibles as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind ASs, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition (April 1, 2015).
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilitiesThe Corporation has opted the exemption for Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities prospectively i.e. after 1st April 2015.
Classification and measurement of financial assetsInd AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable. 
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilitiesThe Corporation has opted the exemption for Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities prospectively i.e. after 1st April 2015.
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Classification and measurement of financial assetsInd AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable. 
I. Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at April 1, 
2015:

  ` in thousands Particulars   As at  Measurement   As at   1-Apr-2015 Ind AS 1-Apr-2015     IGAAP  Ind AS

I. ASSETS     1 Non-current Assets    a. Property,Plant and Equipment            2,799,247                 10,860            2,810,106  b. Intangible assets under development                      90                       -                        90  c. Other non-current assets                     872                       -                       872              2,800,209                 10,860            2,811,068  2 Current Assets    a. Inventories                40,355               (13,102)                27,253  b. Financial Assets    (i) Trade Receivables               117,301                       -                 117,301  (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents                43,480                       -                  43,480  c. Current Tax Assets (Net)                  2,632                       -                    2,632  d. Other current assets                25,253                       -                  25,253                 229,020               (13,102)               215,919  TOTAL ASSETS          3,029,229                (2,242)          3,026,987         
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     1 Equity     a. Equity Share Capital            1,672,500                       -              1,672,500  b. Other Equity               155,679                 21,119               176,798              1,828,179                 21,119            1,849,298  LIABILITIES    2 Non-current Liabilities    a. Financial Liabilities    (i) Borrowings               648,000                       -                 648,000  (ii) Other financial liabilities                30,000                 (6,279)                23,721  b. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)               186,557                   (527)               186,030                 864,557                 (6,806)               857,751  3 Current Liabilities    a. Financial Liabilities    (i) Trade payables                57,560                       -                  57,559  (ii) Other financial liabilities               242,788                  5,588               248,376  b. Other Current Liabilities                14,000                       -                  14,000  c. Provisions                22,145               (22,143)                        3                 336,493               (16,555)               319,938  TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES          3,029,229                (2,242)          3,026,987 
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II. Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at March 31, 2016:  ` in thousands  Particulars   As at   Measurement   As at    31-Mar-2016 Ind AS 31-Mar-2016     IGAAP  Ind AS

I. ASSETS      1 Non-current Assets     a. Property,Plant and Equipment            2,650,308                 10,218            2,660,526  b. Intangible assets under development                      90                       -                        90  c. Other non-current assets                     872                       -                       872              2,651,270                 10,218            2,661,488  2 Current Assets     a. Inventories                44,853               (12,056)                32,796  b. Financial Assets     (ii) Trade Receivables               134,760                       -                 134,760  (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents                69,800                       -                  69,801  c. Current Tax Assets (Net)                  1,088                       -                    1,088  d. Other current assets                21,608                       -                  21,608                 272,109               (12,056)               260,053  TOTAL ASSETS          2,923,379                (1,838)          2,921,541         
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     1 Equity      a. Equity Share Capital            1,672,500                       -              1,672,500  b. Other Equity               217,241                 33,656               250,897              1,889,741                 33,656            1,923,397  LIABILITIES     2 Non-current Liabilities     a. Financial Liabilities     (i) Borrowings               378,000                       -                 378,000  (ii) Other financial liabilities                30,000                 (7,824)                22,176  b. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)                      267,749                           (284) 267,465                 675,749                 (8,108)               667,641       3 Current Liabilities     a. Financial Liabilities     (i) Trade payables                40,326                       -                  40,326  (ii) Other financial liabilities               272,620                  6,835               279,455  b. Other Current Liabilities                        10,722                                -                          10,722  c. Provisions                        34,221                      (34,221)                               -                   357,889               (27,386)               330,503  TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES          2,923,379                (1,838)          2,921,541 
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III. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016:  ` in thousands  Particulars  Year Ended 
31-Mar-2016

IGAAP

Measurement 
Ind AS Year Ended 

31-Mar-2016
Ind AS

       
I Revenues from Operations               626,211                  2,118               628,329 
II Other Income                  6,615                       -                    6,615 
III Total Revenue (I+II)             632,826                 2,118             634,944 

IV Expenses :    Employee Benefits Expense                31,442                       -                  31,442  Finance Costs                89,280                  1,819                91,099  Depreciation and Amortisation               153,149                     643               153,792  Other Expenses               133,965                 (1,046)               132,919 
 Total Expenses             407,836                 1,416             409,252 

V 
Profit before exceptional and 
extraordinary items

  
 and tax (III-IV)               224,990                     702               225,692 
VI Exceptional items    
VII 

Profit before extraordinary items and tax 
(V - VI) 

              224,990                     702               225,692 
VIII Extraordinary Items    
IX Profit before tax (VII- VIII)               224,990                     702               225,692 
X Tax Expense:    1 Current tax  (MAT Payable)                48,015                       -                  48,015  2 Deferred tax                81,192                     243                81,435 
XI 

Profit (Loss) for the period from
 continuing operations (IX - X) 

               95,783                     459                96,242 
XII 

Profit/(loss) from discontinued 
operations

                      -                         -                         -   
XIII Tax expense of discontinued operations                       -                         -                         -   
XIV

Profit/(loss) from Discontinued 
operations (after tax) (XII-XIII)

                      -                         -                         -   
XV Profit/(loss) for the period (XI+XIV)                95,783                     459                96,242 
XVI Other Comprehensive Income   
 

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

                      -                         -                         -   
 (ii) Income tax relating to items that will 

not be reclassified to profit or loss

                      -                         -                         -   
   
 

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss

                      -                         -                         -   
 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will
be reclassified to profit or loss

                      -                         -                         -   
XVII Total Comprehensive Income for the 

period (XV+XVI)(Comprising Profit 
(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income 
for the period)

               95,783                     459                96,242 
    
XVIII

Earnings per equity share (for 
discontinued & continuing operations) 

   [Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each]    Basic                     0.57                    0.00                    0.58  Diluted                     0.57                    0.00                    0.58 
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IV. The Company does not have a significant impact on the Cash flow statement as on 31 March 
2016.

V. Reconciliation of Equity as on 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015  ` in thousands 

Particulars Note Ref March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Net worth as per Previous GAAP           1,889,741          1,828,179 Reversal of Proposed Dividend  A                 34,221                        22,143 Fair Valuation of deposits  B                     990                     691 Impact of Stores and Spares  C                 (1,839)                 (2,242)Deferred tax  D                     284                     527 
Net worth as per Ind AS                  1,923,397                1,849,298 

Notes to reconciliations:-

A. Proposed Dividend Under Indian GAAP, proposed dividend including dividend distribution tax (DDT), are recognised as a liability in the period in which they relate, as these are considered as an adjusting event. Under Ind AS, proposed dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared by the Company i.e. usually when approved by shareholders in an annual general meeting.  Accordingly, the liability for proposed dividend including dividend distribution tax as at 1st April 2015 and 31st March 2016 of ` 22,143 thousand and ` 34,221 thousand respectively included under the provisions has been reversed with corresponding adjustments to retained earnings.
B. Fair valuation of DepositsThe Company has obtained an interest free security deposit of ` 30,000 thousand under Gas Transportaion Agreement which is to be returned after 11 years. Under Ind AS, this deposit has been measured at fair value on initial recognition with the corresponding impact on additional transportation charges
C. Stores and SparesUnder Indian GAAP, machinery spares that are specific to the a particular property, plant and equipment (PPE) are capitalised to the cost of the PPE. Spares acquired subsequently are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. Under Ind AS, spares with a useful life of more than one year shall be treated as PPE and depreciated from the date they are ready to use over the useful life of the spare part. Hence, spares which were erstwhile treated as inventory under IGAAP shall now be classified as part of PPE if recognition criteria are met and corresponding depreciation is charged from the date they are ready to use to retained earnings.
D. Deferred TaxIndian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on diff erences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind-AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary diff erences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind-AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary diff erences which was not required under Indian GAAP.
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

5 Intangible assets under development ` in thousands  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

SOFTWAREa) Inventory Management Software                 90                          90                          90                 90                          90                          90 
6 Other non-current assets ` in thousands  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Security Deposits(Unsecured, considered good)                872                        872                        872 
               872                        872                        872 

7 Inventories ` in thousands  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Stores and spares valued at Weighted Average Cost           96,557      88,437                    82,901 
Less : Provision for Losses for Project surplus material          (46,384)  (55,641)                   (55,648)

          50,173      32,796                    27,253 
8 Trade Receivables ` in thousands  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Unsecured Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment :Considered good -                          -                            -   Considered doubtful -                          -                            -   Provision for doubtful receivable -                          -                            -   
Not Exceeding Six Months :                  -                            -                            -   Other receivables                  -                            -                            -   Considered good          120,297 134,760                  117,301 Considered doubtful                  -                            -                            -   

         120,297  134,760                  117,301 
         120,297  134,760                  117,301 
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents ` in thousands   31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Cash in Hand                 40                          46                          -   Balances with bank                  -                            -                            -   In current account                830                     9,228                  13,375 Deposits with original maturity of less than three months          117,647                   60,527                  30,105 Other Bank Balances                         -                            -                            -   Deposits with original maturity for more than three months           15,075                          -                            -   
              133,592                   69,801                  43,480 

10 Current Tax Assets (Net)   31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15Advance Income Tax           68,484             49,103                  50,111 Provision for Income Tax (MAT)          (65,213)                 (48,015)                 (47,479)
            3,271              1,088              2,632 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate  ` in thousands 

    
For the year 

ended March 31, 
2017

For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

Profit before tax             307,035               225,692 Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate at MAT (Current year 21.34% and 21.34 % Previous Year )                 65,526                   48,170 Increase in tax  rate
Tax effect of:Amount withdrawn from reserves or provisions                    (322)                          (2)Tax-exempt incomeAmount of deferred tax expense (income) relating to the origination and reversal of temporary diff erencesInterest expense not deductible for tax purposes                          9 Incremental deduction allowed for research and development costsInvestment allowance deductionOthers                        15                      (153)
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit & Loss               65,228                 48,015 
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The applicable normal Indian statutory tax rate for fiscal 2017 and fiscal 2016 is 34.61%. However the company is provision taxes (MAT) as per section 115JB of the I T Act, 1961. MAT Credit has not been recognized due to uncertainity of recovery of same within the specified period.
11 Other current assets ` in thousands   31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Security Deposits(Unsecured, considered good)                  -                     -                     -   
Loans and advances to related parties(Secured, considered good)                  -                     -                     -   
Other Loans and advances

  To Employees(Secured, considered good)                  -                     -                     -   
  To Others(Unsecured, considered good)             2,801              2,957                       876 (Unsecured, considered doubtful)                  -                     -                     -   Less : Provision for doubtful advances                  -                     -                     -                    -                     -                     -   Prepaid Expenses                822                 824                       824                  -                     -                     -                    -                     -                     -   Deposit with Statutory Authories             2,060              4,065                    3,724 Claimable CENVAT on Service Tax             1,076                 675                    1,821 Interest accrued but not due on Fixed Deposits                485                 203                       101 Other Receivables                 32             12,884                  17,907 

            7,276             21,608            25,253 
Deposits with Statutory Authorities includes CENVAT credit on capital goods of `197 thousand (previous year `33 thousand) and CENVAT on Service Tax  `1,863 thousand (previous year `4,031 thousand).
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

12 Equity Share Capital ` in thousands    31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Equity Shares

Authorised 17,00,00,000 ( 31 March 2016 : 17,00,00,000 ) Equity Share of  `10/- each 1,700,000          1,700,000          1,700,000 1,700,000 1,700,000  1,700,000 
Issued, Subscribed and 
Paid up16,72,50,000 ( 31 March 2016 : 16,72,50,000 ) Equity Shares of  
`10/- each  1,672,500 1,672,500  1,672,500      1,672,500          1,672,500          1,672,500 

a.
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting 
period

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15
` in thousands ` in thousands ` in thousands

Equity Shares Number  Amount Number Amount Number AmountShares outstanding at the beginning of the year 167,250,000 1,672,500 167,250,000 1,672,500 167,250,000 1,672,500 Shares Issued during the year                         -                      -                         -                       -                             -                             -   Shares bought back during the year                         -                      -                          -                       -                            -                             -   Shares outstanding at the end of the year 167,250,000 1,672,500 167,250,000          1,672,500 167,250,000 1,672,500 
b.

Terms/right attached to 
equity sharesThe company has only one class of equity shares having par value of `10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c.
Shares held by holding 
companyOut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by Holding Company is as below :

` in thousands
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15Assam Gas Company Limited (with nominees)8,53,00,000  (31st March 2016 : 8,53,00,000) equity shares of  

`10/- each fully paid 853,000 853,000 853,000 
d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31 Mar-17         AS 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Number
% of 

Holding
Number % of Holding Number % of Holding

Name of ShareholdersAssam Gas Company Limited (with nominees) 85,300,000  51% 85,300,000 51% 85,300,000 51% Numaligarh Refinery Limited 43,490,000  26% 43,490,000 26% 43,490,000 26% Oil India Limited. 38,460,000  23% 38,460,000 23% 38,460,000 23% 
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13 Other Equity ` in thousands   General Reserve  
Profit & Loss 

Account
 Total  

As at 01-April- 2015             176,298                 500          176,798 
Profit/(Loss) for the year                     -               96,242            96,242 Dividend to Equity shareholders                     -             (18,398)          (18,398)Tax on Distribution Profits                     -               (3,745)            (3,745)Corporate Income Tax payment adjusted                     -                     -                    -   Transfer (to)/from              74,099           (74,099)                  -   
As at 31-Mar-16             250,397                  500           250,897 
As at 01-April- 2016             250,397                 500          250,897 
Profit/(Loss) for the year                 134,875          134,875 Dividend to Equity shareholders                             -                   (28,433)          (28,433)Tax on Distribution Profits                             -                     (5,788)            (5,788)Corporate Income Tax payment adjusted                             -                             -                    -   Transfer (to)/from             100,654          (100,654)                  -   
As at 31-Mar-17             351,051                  500           351,551 
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14 Borrowings  ` in thousands  Non-current portion Current Maturities
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Term Loans -   -   
From Oil India Limited -   -   
Secured -   -   
Unsecured -   -   648,000 240,000 -   -   
From Assam Gas Company Limited -   -   
Secured -   -   -   -   -   
Unsecured 108,000 378,000 -   270,000 270,000 -   
From State Bank of India

Secured -   -   -   -   
Unsecured -   -   -   -   
Amount disclosed under the head 
“Other Financial Liabilities”.

-   -   (270,000) (270,000) (240,000)108,000 378,000 648,000 -   -   -   
Additional Information to Secured/Unsecured Long Term Borrowings:The long term portion of term loans are shown under long term borrowings and the current maturities of the long term borrowings are shown under the current liabilties as per the disclosure requirements of the Schedule III.
Detail of Securities and Terms of repayment

i) Oil India Limited :The loan of ` 8,88,000 thousand bearing interest at the rate of  11.45%  is repayable in 45 (fourty-five) monthly installments, consisting of 44 (fourty-four) equal monthly installments of ` 20,000 thousand each and Last 1 (one) installment of  ` 8,000 thousand only.
ii) Assam Gas Company Limited :-The loan of ` 6,48,000 thousand bearing interest at the rate of  10.00%  is repayable in 29 (twenty-nine) monthly installments, consisting of 28 (twenty-eight) equal monthly installments of ` 22,500 thousand each and Last 1 (one) installment of  ` 18,000 thousand only.
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15 Other financial liabilities ` in thousands  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Non-Current:

Deposits from Customer (Non Current)                15,229                   15,299                14,725 Advance for Transportation Charge (Non Current)                  4,759                     6,877                  8,996 
(A)                19,988                   22,176                23,721 

Current:Current maturities of long term debt 270,000 270,000              240,000 EMD from Contractors & Suppliers                  2,140                        903                    452 Security Deposits from Contractors                  1,746                     1,468                  1,174 Retentions from Contractors                    250                        250                  1,162 Advance against Project                45,511                          -                        -   Advance for transportation Charge (Current)                  2,118                     2,118                  2,118 Deposits from Customer (Current)                  6,787                     4,716                  3,470 
(B)              328,552                 279,455              248,376 

Total (A+B)            348,540                301,631             272,097 

Advance against Project comprises of amount received from NHIDCL against expenses to be incurred by the Company for shifting of pipelines due to the ongoing work of four laning of NH-37. The same will be amortised against expenses incurred for the same in due course of time.
16 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

` in thousands  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Deferred Tax LiabilityDeposits from Customer                    379                        339                    235 Property, Plant and Equipment              412,112                 379,350              334,213 
Total            412,491                379,689             334,448 

Deferred Tax AssetsProperty, Plant and Equipment                38,094                 112,224              147,611 Other Items                      -                            -                      807 
Total              38,094                112,224             148,418 

Net Deferred Tax Liability              374,397                 267,465              186,030 
The Company has recognized Deferred Tax  Asset in respect of Unabsorbed Depreciation on the basis of Gas Transportaion Agreement between the Company and Numaligarh Refinery Limited for a period of 15 years, being convincing evidence to substantiate Virtual Certainity of sufficient future taxable income for realisation of such deferred assets. 
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17 Trade payables ` in thousands

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Creditors for Capital Expenditure                1,307                1,502              4,811 Other Trade Payables              26,826              38,824            52,748 
             28,133              40,326            57,559 

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2017, 31st March, 2016 and 1st April, 2015. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
18 Other Current Liabilities ` in thousands

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Statutory Liabilities                2,353              10,221              8,239 Other Payables                1,035                  501              5,761 
               3,388              10,722            14,000 

19 Provisions ` in thousands

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Other Provisions

Provision for Professional Tax                      3                    -                      3 Proposed Dividend                    -                      -                    -   Corporate Dividend Tax on Proposed Dividend                    -                      -                    -   
                     3                    -                      3 



[ 194 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

20 Revenues from Operations ` in thousands  April - Mar 17 April - Mar 16

Sale of ServicesTransportation of Gas              665,080               628,329 
             665,080               628,329 

21 Other Income ` in thousands  April - Mar 17 April - Mar 16

Interest IncomeOn Bank Deposits                 8,624                   4,796 Others                 1,595                     888 Insurance Claim Received                    262                       -   Inventory Provision Written Back                 9,256                         8 Other non-operating income                     86                     923 
              19,823                   6,615 

22 Employee Benefits Expense ` in thousands  April - Mar 17 April - Mar 16

Salaries and wagesEmployees               10,569                   8,470 Deputed Employees (AGCL)               17,496                 21,616 Contribution to Provident Fund                 1,157                     965 Contribution to Gratuity Fund                    243                     204 Welfare & Training Expenses                    583                     187 
              30,048                 31,442 

23 Finance Costs ` in thousands  April - Mar 17 April - Mar 16

Interest expenses on loans                      -                         -   Oil India Limited                      -                   83,622 Assam Gas Company Limited               52,459                   5,658 Interest on Fair Valuation                 2,001                   1,819 
              54,460                 91,099 
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24 Other Expenses ` in thousands April - Mar 17 April - Mar 16 Power & Fuel               60,563              75,365  Operation & Maintenance        - Compressor               19,257              17,519       - Others                 1,173                1,535  ROW Expenses                     -                       -         - ROW Rental Charges                 4,079                3,999       - ROW Supervision Charges                   408                   400  Rent                 1,839                   275  Repair & Maintenance                     -                       -        Plant & Machinery               14,008              11,299      Building                  2,447                   267      Others                   421                   475  Insurance                 5,185                5,175  Rates and Taxes-excluding taxes on income                   623                   652  Auditors’ Remuneration                     -                       -        Statutory Audit Fees                     40                    40      Cost Audit Fee                     30                    30      Tax Audit Fee                     18                    15      Secretarial Audit Fee                     20                     -        For Other Matters (Statutory Auditor)                       8                    13      For Other Matters (Cost Auditor)                     30                    15      Reimbursement of Out of Pocket Expenses ( Statutory Auditor)                       5                      5  Travelling and Conveyance                 3,389                2,883  Stationery, Postage, Telephone & Advertisement                 2,298                1,344  Security Expenses                 7,422                6,681  Accounting Service Charges                 1,942                1,701  CSR Expenses                 1,123                2,056  Professional Charges                 1,054                   437  Transportation Charges                   938                     -    Fire & Safety Expenses                   960                      4  Interest on Entry Tax               12,839                     -    Bank Charges & Other Misc. Expenses                   904                   734  Discount/ Loss on Sale of Inventory                 6,468                     -   
            149,491             132,919 

25 Extraordinary Items ` in thousands April - Mar 17 April - Mar 16

 Loss on Account of Fire                 6,902                     -   
6,902                             -   
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26  Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair valuesThe following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
` in thousands

Carrying amount Fair value

March 31, 2017
Mandatorily 

at FVTPL 
FVTOCI - 

designated as such
Amortised 

Cost
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents 133,592 133,592 Trade receivables 120,297 120,297                -                       -                           -   253,888 253,888            -                   -            -                     -   
Financial liabilities Deposit from Customer               28,893  28,893 28,893             28,893 Term loans           378,000             378,000                   -   Trade and other payables            28,133   28,133                   -   Other current financial liabilities            49,647 49,647                   -                 28,893                         -   455,780 484,673            -   28,893          -               28,893 

` in thousands

Carrying amount  Fair value

March 31, 2016
Mandatorily 

at FVTPL 
FVTOCI - 

designated as such
Amortised 

Cost
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents            69,801 69,801                   -   Trade receivables 134,760 134,760                   -                       -                           -   204,560 204,560            -                   -            -                     -   
Financial liabilities Deposit from Customer               29,010 29,010 29,010             29,010 Term Loans 648,000 648,000                   -   Trade and other payables            40,326 40,326                   -   Other current financial liabilities              2,620     2,620                   -                 29,010                         -   690,947 719,957            -   29,010          -               29,010 

Contd....
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` in thousands

Carrying amount  Fair value

April 1, 2015
Mandatorily 

at FVTPL 
FVTOCI - 

designated as such
Amortised 

Cost
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents            43,480 43,480                   -   Trade receivables 117,301 117,301                   -   
                    -                           -    160,781 160,781            -                   -            -                     -   

Financial liabilities Deposit from Customer               29,309  29,309 29,309             29,309 Term Loans  888,000  888,000                   -   Trade and other payables            57,559 57,559                   -   Other current financial liabilities              2,788   2,788                   -   
             29,309                         -    948,348  977,656            -   29,309          -             29,309 

B. Measurement of 
fair valuesValuation techniques and significant unobservable inputsThe following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, for financial instruments measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used. Related valuation processes are described in Note XX.
Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique
Significant

unobservable 
inputs

Inter-relationship 
between

significant 
unobservable inputs

and fair value 
measurement

Deposit from Customer Present Value techniques using appropriate discounting rates. Not applicable Not Applicable
C. Financial risk 
management
i. Risk management 
frameworkThe Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.Baring Market risk the Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:Credit risk ;• Liquidity risk• 
i. Market riskMarket risk is the risk of changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – that will aff ect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. Though the Company expects circumstances relating of transactions in foreign currency, but the Company is currently not carrying any foreign exchange bearing financial instruments in the stated reporting periods.
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Contd....

ii. Credit riskCredit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers.The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the financial instuments covered below is resticted to their respective carrying amount.
Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of the customer. The Company assumes low credit risk on Trade Receivables which comprise of only one customer amounting to ` 1,17,301 thousand as at 1st April 2015, 
` 1,34,759 thousand at 31st March 2016 and ` 1,20,297 thousand as at 31st March 2017; as it does not expect its customer to fail in meeting its contractual obligations as the Company understands that the customer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

` in thousands

31-Mar-17 Gross carrying amount
Weighed average 
loss rate - range

Loss allowance

Neither past due not impaired               58,496                 -                              -   Past due 1–90 days               61,801                 -                              -   More than 90 days                     -                   -                              -               120,297                 -                              -   
` in thousands

31-Mar-16 Gross carrying amount
Weighed average 
loss rate - range

Loss allowance

Neither past due not impaired             65,926                 -                              -   Past due 1–90 days               68,834                 -                              -   More than 90 days                     -                   -                              -               134,760                 -                              -   
` in thousands

April 1, 2015 Gross carrying amount
Weighed average 
loss rate - range

Loss allowance

Neither past due not impaired             59,859                 -                              -   Past due 1–90 days               57,442                 -                              -   More than 90 days                     -                   -                              -               117,301                 -                              -   
Cash and cash equivalentsThe Company held cash and cash equivalents of of  ` 43,480 thousand as at April 1, 2015, ` 69,801 thousand as at 31;st march 2016 and ` 1,33,592 thousand as at March 31, 2017. The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank with good credit ratings . The Company also invests its short term surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, which carry no/low mark to market risks for short duration therefore does not expose the company to credit risk.Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other material financial assets that are past due but not impaired.
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iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due in a cost eff ective manner, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
Exposure to liquidity risk

 ` in thousands 

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2017
Carrying 
amount Total Upto 1 year

1-3 
years

3-5 
years

More than 5 years

Financial liabilitiesDeposit from Customer                       28,893              30,000      30,000 Term loans                     378,000            378,000         270,000    108,000              -                                        -   Trade and other payables                       28,133                      -   Other current liabilities                       49,647                      -   
 ` in thousands 

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2016
Carrying 
amount Total Upto 1 year

1-3 
years

3-5 
years

More than 5 years

Financial liabilitiesDeposit from Customer                       29,010              30,000                   -                -        30,000                                      -   Term loans                     648,000            648,000         270,000    378,000              -                                        -   Trade and other payables                       40,326              40,326           40,326 Other current liabilities                         2,620                2,620             2,620 
 ` in thousands 

Contractual cash flows

April 1, 2015
Carrying 
amount Total Upto 1 year

1-3 
years

3-5 
years

More than 5 years

Financial liabilitiesDeposit from Customer                       29,309              30,000                   -                -                -                                30,000 Term loans                     888,000            888,000         240,000    648,000 Trade and other payables                       57,559              57,559           57,559              -                -                                        -   Other current liabilities                         2,788                2,788             2,788              -                -                                        -   
The Comapny has not carried any derivative financial liabilities as on 1st April 2015, 31st March 2016 and 31st March 2017



[ 200 ] ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

27 Provision for taxation (MAT) for the financial year 2016-17 amounting to `65,228 thousand ( Previous Year `48,015 thousand) has been made as per section 115JB of the I T Act, 1961. MAT Credit has not been recognized due to uncertainity of recovery of same within the specified period.
28 Earnings per equity share  ` in thousands   31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Face value `10/- eachNet profit as per Profit and Loss account available to Equity Shareholders            134,875               96,242Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year       167,250,000         167,250,000 Basic earnings per share (`)                  0.81                    0.58 Diluted earnings per share (`)                  0.81                    0.58 
29 The company is operating under a single segment. As such there is no other reportable segment as defined by the Ind AS-108 Operating Segments notified by the Ministry of Corporate Aff airs.
30 Trade payable, Trade Receivable and Creditors for Capital Expenditure are subject to Confirmation.
31 During the year Company has paid Entry Tax demand amounting to `57181 thousand (including interest `12,839 thousand ) pertaining to FY 2008-09 and 2009-10. The interest of `12,839 thousand has been charged to profit  and loss under Other expenses at note no. 24. Out of the remaining `44,342 thousand and amount of `42,659 thousand has been capitalised under the head pipeline, `78 thousand has been capitalised to Compressors, `1,496 thousand has been charged to inventory and `108 thousand has been charged to profit and loss on account of sale of inventory of earlier years.
32 As per guidelines Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the company has assessed the recoverable amount of the relevant assets and found that no impairment exists in relation to its assets as on 1st April 2015, 31st March 2016 and 31st March 2017.
33 Contingent Liabilities  ` in thousands   31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Contingent Liabilities :Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts :                       -                     -   In respect of Taxation mattersService Tax                2,229                  2,229               2,229 Guarantees :                       -                     -   Other Money for which the company is contingently liable :Rental and Supervision Charges for ROW to Oil India Limited              10,070                  8,308               6,580 Money appeal pending before the Court of District Judge, Jorhat                       -                   500              12,299                10,537               9,309 
Commitments :Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net off  Advance)                4,173                15,062               2,787 

               4,173                15,062               2,787 
34 Related Party TransactionsThe Company has adopted the exemption under para 25 of Ind AS-24 related to disclosure pertaining to related parties under the control of the same Govt.
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List of Related Parties
Particulars  123The details of amounts (due to) or due from related parties as at 1st April 2015, 31st March 2016 and 31st March 2017 are as follows:

 ` in thousands 

Particulars  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15Numaligarh Refinery Limited (NRL)              91,403               105,750             87,992 Oil India Limited (OIL)               (5,970)               (14,382)          (902,152)
Terms and Conditions and nature of consideration for settlement:12The details of the related parties transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended 31st March 2016 and 31st March 2017 are as follows:

 ` in thousands 
Particulars  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Revenue Transactions:1                1,768                  1,484 2             665,080               628,329 3              53,919                69,178                4,487                  4,399                2,613                       -   
 ` in thousands 

Key management personnel compensation 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-161(a)                   262                       -   (b)                     -                         -   (c)                     -                         -   (d)                     -                         -   (e)                     -                         -   
35 Disclosure pursuant to MCA notification no. G.S.R. 308(E) dated 30th March, 2017 regarding specified bank notes deposited during 9th November 2016 to 30th December 2016.

 Other 
denomination

 notes 
 Total                     -                         -                       -                         -                       -                         -                       -                         -                       -                         -   

36 Reconciliation of Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities are as follows:
 ` in thousands 

 2015-16  2016-17                2,149                  2,624                2,531                  3,430                2,056                  1,123 
              2,624                 4,931 

37 Previous year figuresPrevious year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary for comparison and conforms to current year’s classification.
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CSR activities undertaken by Assam Gas Company Ltd.

Top Row (from left) : Project Ashadeep with Don Bosco Institute, Maligaon, Guwahati; Solar Lamp; CSR project with  RGVN at Chapatoli Gaon No.1- near Bhadoi Pachali
Middle Row (from left) : Project Pratyasha- a Skill Development Programme with Don Bosco Institute, Kharguli; Conversion of bio-degradable waste to organic manure
Bottom (left) : Parimal Basudha- a step towards cleanliness in AMCH, Dibrugarh


